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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small & medium sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of SK Target Group Limited (the “"Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRHRES

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of SK Target Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2018.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”). | would like to
take this opportunity and thank the professional parties and our
staffs involved in the listing again.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the revenue of the Group
increased by approximately 14% as compared to the financial
year ended 31 May 2017. The revenue generated from the
manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction
boxes decreased by approximately 11% while those from the
Building Material and Services Business Segment increased by
approximately 152%.

In view of the decrease in revenue in the manufacturing and
trading of precast junction boxes segment, the Group is exploring
opportunities in the diversification of business risk with a view
to maximising returns to the Group and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole in the long run. As part of the Company’s
diversification plan, the Company has expanded into the Japanese
catering services in Hong Kong. The business commenced in May
2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the overall market condition
of the precast concrete junction box industry (i.e. the industry
in relation to the manufacturing of both precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and precast concrete electrical
junction box) in Malaysia was relatively stable. However, following
a change in the Malaysian Government in May 2018, there are
changes in policies to fulfil the election mandates of Mr. Mahathir
Mohamad, the Prime Minister. The potential changes in policies
may create more uncertainty to the growth of the economy of
Malaysia in the foreseeable future. Moreover, other factors which
include labour shortage and dependency on foreign workers,
and the rising production and transportation costs may exert
pressure on the Group’s business operations. Nevertheless, the
Group remains cautiously optimistic about the overall business
prospects.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREESE

On 24 February 2017, the Group entered into a legally-binding
collaboration agreement with a ready-mix concrete supplier
(the "Ready-mix Concrete Supplier”), a company which
holds a valid batching plant licence for the supply of ready-
mix concrete. The estimated production capacity of the mini-
batching plant operated by the Ready-mix Concrete Supplier is
approximately 26,400 m? per annum. However, the management
of the Group considered there is no imminent need to commence
the collaboration arrangement. As such, as at 31 May 2018, the
Group continued to source ready-mix concrete from third party
suppliers, and the Group and the Ready-mix Supplier had not
implemented the collaboration agreement.

To optimise the Group's competitive advantages, in the future, the
Group intends to continue the implementation of its strategies,
namely (i) expansion of the Group's production capacity to meet
the increasing future demand for precast concrete junction boxes
in Malaysia; (ii) expansion of the Group's business vertically by
acquiring companies which manufacture junction box covers
and other accessories in Malaysia; and (iii) diversification
of the customer base for the Group’s precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and its precast concrete
electrical junction boxes by penetrating its sales into other regions
of Malaysia.

Also, the Group commenced its Japanese catering services in May
2018 in order to broaden the income stream. The management
of the Group is committed to looking for business opportunities
that would generate long-term returns to the shareholders of the
Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREEE

PROSPECT
The Group is taking positive steps to maintain the Group’s
business operation and to build sustainable business operation
for the Group in order to maximize the shareholders’ return of
the Company.

The continued government interest and investment to expand
power distribution, telecommunication, civil infrastructures
coupled with the development of new commercial, industrial, and
residential areas remains the key drivers and opportunities for the
precast concrete telecommunication junction box and electrical
junction box manufacturing industry in Malaysia. The Malaysian
Government has already implemented changes in policies to
fulfil the election mandates declared by Mr. Mahathir Mohamad
(the current Prime Minister) during the General Election held in
May 2018. The Board expects that more changes in policies may
be forthcoming as certain policies are being reviewed for the
time being. The potential changes in policies may create more
uncertainty to the growth of the economy of Malaysia. The Board
will continue to monitor the business environment in Malaysia and
make appropriate adjustments to the Group's operations should
there be a need.

The Directors are also looking for appropriate investment
opportunities, especially on the vertical integration opportunity.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
shareholders and Board members for their support and efforts to
the Group. | also express my sincere gratitude to our customers
and business partners for continued support, as well as to
my colleagues and staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and
contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 August 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete
electrical junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia.
The Group's precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i)
telecommunication and electrical infrastructures upgrade and
expansion works; and (i) construction projects in Malaysia. They
are buried underground to deter tampering and are used to house
and protect a junction with telecommunication and electrical
utility connection and distribution access points from weather,
changing elevation underground and provide easy access for
maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or the approved supplier
of various notable telecommunication companies such as Celcom
Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”) since 2008
and the registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd. (“TNB"), the
sole electric utility company, in Malaysia since 2012. Hence, the
Group’s precast concrete junction boxes are used in infrastructure
or construction projects involving telecommunication companies
and TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the revenue of the Group
increased slightly by approximately 14% mainly due to an increase
in the revenue generated from trading of accessories and pipes
and the provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services.
On the other hand, the demand for the Group’s precast concrete
junction boxes dropped slightly compared to the previous year.
This was mainly due to the fact that the delay and the decreased
in sales orders from several customers in the first half of the
financial year. Orders were gradually picking up in the second half
of the year and consequently the decrease has been narrowed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DN

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the overall market condition
of the precast concrete junction box industry (i.e. the industry
in relation to the manufacturing of both precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and precast concrete electrical
junction box) in Malaysia was relatively stable. However, following
a change in the Malaysian Government in May 2018, there are/
will be changes in policies to fulfil the election mandates of Mr.
Mahathir Mohamad, the Prime Minister. The potential changes
in policies may create more uncertainty to the growth of the
economy of Malaysia in the foreseeable future. Moreover, other
factors which include labour shortage and dependency on foreign
workers, and the rising production and transportation costs may
exert pressure on the Group’s business operations. Nevertheless,
the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the overall business
prospects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue increased from approximately RM33.6 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately RM38.2 million for the
year ended 31 May 2018, representing a growth of approximately
14%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the revenue
generated from the trading of accessories and pipes and provision
of mobile crane rental and ancillary services.

The Group's revenue generated from the trading of accessories
and pipes and the provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services increased by approximately 152%, from approximately
RM5.0 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately
RM12.6 million for the year ended 31 May 2018. The increase was
mainly caused by the increase in sales of scrap irons and pipes.

The Group is exploring opportunities in the diversification of
business risk with a view to maximise returns to the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole in the long run.
The Group has expanded into the Japanese catering services in
Hong Kong in May 2018. It generated approximately RM0.2 million
income to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Cost of sales and Gross Profit

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and
trading products; (i) manufacturing overheads, (iii) direct labour;
and (iv) crane hiring costs. The cost of sales increased from
approximately RM23.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to
approximately RM29.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 27%. Such change was
mainly attributable the increase in material wage and sales of
other building materials during the year ended 31 May 2018.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of precast
concrete junction boxes decreased from approximately RM18.3
million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately RM17.4
million for the year ended 31 May 2018.

The Gross Profit decreased from approximately RM10.4 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately RM8.7 million for
the year ended 31 May 2018.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
RM4.2 million or 127% from approximately RM3.3 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately RM7.5 million for the
year ended 31 May 2018.

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general
office expenses, depreciation and professional service fees. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs paid
to Directors and staff due to business expansion and audit fee
and other professional costs in relation to the compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately RMO0.1 million or 10% from approximately RM1.3
million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately RM1.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2018.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing staff
and travelling and entertainment expenses. The slight decrease of
selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to the decrease
in incentive bonus and commission associated with the decrease
in sales of the manufacturing and trading business.
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HERARER
HERATERRONEMHRESEMKA
(NVBEBR: (NEEST: RivEEE®ER
A - SHERABREE2017F5831B LFE
#2328 BLEEMER Z201845A318 1F
FEH0IBEST  BIR27% - BEE
DEEHNBE2018F5A3NR IEFEMHE
MR EMEEMFEE LT

L M ERERR T ERAENBEEER
NABE E201745031R L EE X183 ES
TR A EEH E2018F5A831H IEFE 1745

A
Hm<TE e

EFMHABEE20177F58318 L FE L1048 &
SERDEE E2018F5A31H IE FE £98.7

BEBSH -

THREX

AEBENTHRASHAEZ2017F5A318LF
EHB3EBSHWMPL2AEES T H127%
EEHE2018F5A31HIEFELHNISEEST »

AEENTHAXIZEREHE  ®BAIKE
fhEr HeLEW  —RBAEMI
ENEERBE - BAEMNDIEARFER
XNTEERBETINETIAAEN  RAR
EBEEALEERECEM LT AR GHENE
ARERAMEMEXER -

HERDHMAX

REBEBMHER D HE E2017F5A8
NBUEFELNIBESTRIN0IEESS
HI10% ZEH E2018F5A3NBIEFEN12ES

A=
~ B

o

AEBENHERDHERAX T ERFEHERT
BHEETHNH T BN REMENNRE
RMBREFAX - HERD HFEXEMR DT
EEHNABIEARN DR BE KB 5
ERIEHARBERDPTE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately RM3.1 million
for the year ended 31 May 2018 due to the net effect of (i) the
recognition of a non-recurring Listing expenses of approximately
RM2.3 million for its Listing exercise during the year ended 31 May
2018; (i) the increase in the administrative expenses incurred by
the Group for the year ended 31 May 2018; (iii) the slight increase
in the cost of sales of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2018
and (iv) the slight increase in revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2018

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Operational risk

The Group's operation is subject to general economic and
market risks which may affect the competition and profitability
of construction projects. The Group’s key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@  Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may
have adverse impacts on the Group’s financial results,

(b) The Group’'s revenue is mainly derived from the
manufacturing and sale of precast concrete junction boxes
to its customers for infrastructure upgrades and expansion
work for construction projects, which are non-recurrent in
nature and there is no guarantee that the customers will
place new business purchase orders; and

(c)  The Group's cash flow position may deteriorate owing to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from
its customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is
unable to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the
Group dated 6 July 2017 (the "Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Financial risks

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time
to time based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on
cash inflow from its customers to meet its payment obligations
to our suppliers. The Group's cash inflow is dependent on the
prompt settlement of its payments. As at 31 May 2018, the
Group recorded trade receivables amounting to approximately
RM18.3 million, the number of trade receivables turnover days
was approximately 175 days which exceeded the credit period
stipulated on the Group’s service agreements with its customers
with average trade payable turnover days of approximately 112
days. The Group is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk.
For further details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 May 2018, the Group's cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM21.5 million (31 May 2017: approximately RM8.3
million).

As at 31 May 2018, the Group has no borrowings (31 May 2017:
approximately RM0.6 million).

As at 31 May 2018, the Group current ratio was 4.3 (31 May 2017:
2.6), which is calculated based on the total current assets divided
by the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was approximately
Nil as at 31 May 2018 (31 May 2017: 3.2%), which is calculated
based on the total interest-bearing loans divided by the total
equity.

As at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018, the Group had no
bank borrowings. The Group’s financial position is sound and
strong. With available bank balances and cash and bank credit
facilities, the Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its funding
requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 19 July 2017. There has been no change
in the capital structure of the Group since then. The share capital
of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2018, the share capital and equity attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to approximately RM3.4
million and approximately RM34.3 million respectively (31 May
2017: RM57 and RM18.5 million respectively). Details of the capital
risk management are set out in the note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 May 2018, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment is Nil (31 May
2017: RM117,000).

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (‘RM"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if any,
payable to the Shares in HK$ to our Shareholders. Furthermore,
fluctuations in the RM's value against other currencies will
create foreign currency translation gains or losses and may have
an adverse effect on our Group's business, financial condition
and results of operations. Any imposition, variation or removal
of foreign exchange controls may adversely affect the value,
translated or converted into HK$, of our Group's net assets,
earnings or any declared dividends. Consequently, this may
adversely affect our Group’s ability to pay dividends or satisfy
other foreign exchange requirements. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

EXRRE

RAE A FA2017 47 A19 B 78 B 22 BT GEM K
WEM - AEENEARBEAUMELS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

CHARGE OVER ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 May 2018, the Group had bank deposits pledged with
banks totalling approximately (RM0.4 million) million (31 May 2017:
approximately RM1.1 million). These deposits were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS

AND DISPOSALS, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the reorganisation in relation to the listing of the shares
of the Company, there were no significant investment held, nor
other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 May 2018. There is
no specific future plan for material investments or capital assets
as at the date of the report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2018, we had 79 employees who are located
in Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
The Group generally recruits employees from the open market
by placing recruitment advertisements. The Group entered
into individual labour contracts with each of the employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Malaysia and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, which cover matters
such as wages, employee benefits and grounds for termination.
The remuneration package that the Group offers to the employees
includes salary, bonuses, allowances and medical benefits. In
general, the Group determines an employee’s salary based on
each employee’s qualifications, experience and capability and the
prevailing market remuneration rate. The Group has designed a
review system to assess the performance of our employees once
a year, which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to
salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH XBEEHEREKERNEER
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as disclosed inthe REBBRERBEEMESBZEAEBA LH
Prospectus with the Group's actual business progresses for the  HEIE E2018F5F310 (FHIM M BB £ 75
period from the Listing Date to 31 May 2018 is set out as below: R &E DM EFI 0T :

Business Objectives Progress

¥KEE ER

Expansion on production capacity The funds have been used to purchase a few cranes and
N junction box moulds. The Group also recruited 12 new

staffs for the expansion
FAECEANBELTECERLERRKE - REET

RBERBETREHMET
Expansion on marketing and sales team The funds have been used to recruit a new General Sales
BATIGHEREEE K Manager

FHRESCANAEE -2 HEAKE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER RHBERBSRENAR

The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 on the ARRQAF D R2017F7B19BUBHEEH R
GEM by Share Offer. The Offer Price was HK$0.28 per Offer Share. 7EGEM T - HEE A TR ZF SR 1D 0.28/8
The net proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer,  JT  ANA & B % () 3 S WE A FT 15 7 18 ) F 58
after deducting underwriting fees and other expenses, were (B BHEERALEMBASRRE)ANE26E S
approximately HK$29.6 million. BT ©

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been utilised up to HBHEHEHEH - FHATEHIEFE M ARE
the date of report in accordance with the proposed applications [Z&EEREZEEZR | AHPRR D ESA
set out in the section “Net Proceeds from The Share Offer” of BREBEFHE|I—SMENEETAEREIH - T
the announcement “Offer Price and Allotment Results”. The table XN EZHEBHMESR B FENRT A
below lists out the proposed applications of the net proceeds and & N FERIBE R o

usage up to the date of report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmKR DN

Amount
utilised up
to 31 May

2018

BZE

B {7 2% & 20184E5H31H
EEBREHE
HK$ million
BEETT

Net proceeds
from the
share offer

FIEREFE
HKS$ million
BEATT

Unutilised
balance up
to 31 May
2018

BEZE
2018%5H31H
KRB & ek
HK$ million
BAEET

Expansion of production
capacity through

EBUTHERRAERE

(Note a)
(M ita)

(i) expanding our Existing (h #ARBRESTHRK 70 (1.0) 6.0
Selangor Plant [ 5 (Note [t it b & d)
(i) completing the establishment (i) K EZH T KT 7.3 (1.1) 6.2
of our New Kulaijaya Plant and R E & (Note fffitc & d)
(iii) recruiting new staff (i) BFEFMET 2.6 0.3) 2.3
(Note Hf7te)
Acquisition of a parcel of land in 4 &% 5 7 75 25 =3 36 49 8.4 . 8.4
Southern Malaysia 158 (Note K77t
Expansion of our business BRMBEERERR 2.7 — 2.7
vertically in the supply chain of  +HERGE&ITEMEE (Note Kiitg)
the precast concrete junction HEHERERMDY
box industry through mergers Ei
and acquisitions
Expansion of our sales and BAEERTISHE 0.8 0.2) 0.6
marketing team 7 (Note K7 7th)
General working capital —REEES 0.8 0.8) —
Total 485t 29.6 3.4 26.2
Notes: Wit

(@) The unused listing proceeds have been deposited in licensed banks

in Malaysia and Hong Kong.

(b)  The listing proceeds of approximately HK$6.0 million have not

been utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group intends to use up
the remaining fund for expanding our Existing Selangor Plant by
30 November 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

The listing proceeds of approximately HK$6.2 million have not been
utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group will use up the remaining
fund for completing the establishment of the New Kulaijaya Plant
by 30 November 2019.

In view of the dropping in revenue in the manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes segment, the management of
the Group have a reservation view over the current timetable to
expand the Group’s production capacity. The Group will closely
monitor both the internal and the external factors and will decide
on the expansion of production capacity in due course.

The listing proceeds of approximately HK$2.3 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2019.

The listing proceeds of approximately HK$8.4 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2019.

The listing proceeds of approximately HK$2.7 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2018. As at 31 May 2018, the
Directors had not identified any acquisition target.

The listing proceeds of approximately HK$0.6 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2018. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2019.

The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objectives and will change or modify plans against the changing
market conditions to ascertain the business growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There are no significant event after the reporting period.

7 BT 15 3008 496,200,0005% 7T 720184F5 A
3TEEAEA - AEE B H2019F11830H
A2 HMBTERERRBELTERE

ERRERERRERALERIS D AR
ATE AEEERECHEALNEEE
BEMBANRARSREER - AKREKE
PIERFE M ER R SN BD A R - 3R TE E B IR
RERE -

T BT 15 3018 492,300,0005% 7T 72018 E5 A
THEAREA o A& E# R2019F11H30H
HMEBAEHH%HTES -

= BT 18 3R 18 498,400,000 7T 7201845 A
3B ARBA - AEEER2019F11A30H
AMBAE2BBTES -

BT BT 5 308 492,700,000 7T A 20184F5 A
3B HAREA - AEBEEMK2018F11A308
MEAE2BHRTES - N2018F5A831H -
ETHAEEEMKREERE-

7 AT 8 3R 49600,0005%8 7T R 201845 A 31
HREAREA - NEE#H 7K20199F11 830871
FATHBTES -

EENRHANGAKRENEKRER  IHA
JRE T 88 B ) T O S BB BT B AR AR
AEENEBER -

MRAREBH - ERREAMSEHERENG
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HERRER
BEMRLBEAER -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EEREREEE[B/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 51, is the founder of the group.
He was appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall business strategy, approving annual
budget proposals, and major business decisions of the group. Mr.
Loh has over 20 years of work experience in the precast concrete
junction box industry. Mr. Loh completed his secondary school
from five level education in Tsung Wah National Type Secondary
School, Kuala Kangsar, Perak, Malaysia in November 1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where he
was primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies in Malaysia. In March 1993, Mr. Loh co-
founded Target Precast, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the group which was at that time primarily involved in the supply
of ready-mix concrete to construction companies, negotiating
business with customers and responsible for the daily operations
of the group. In 1995, Mr. Loh, for the first time, manufactured
the moulds using the then existing technology for precast
concrete junction boxes and commenced the production and
manufacturing of precast junction concrete boxes to customers.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENEREEEGAN

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong, aged 38, is an Executive Director of the
group. Mr. Tan was appointed to the Board on 9 December 2016
and is a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is responsible for reviewing the planning, and management
of the business. He is also involved in the sales and marketing
activities which include negotiating business with customers. Mr.
Tan joined the group as a business development executive in
November 2014. Mr. Tan graduated with a Bachelor’s degree of
Commerce majoring in Accounting and Finance from the Curtin
University of Technology in Australia in February 2002.

In May 2002, Mr. Tan worked as an audit assistant with Y C
Tan & Co, a public accounting firm in Singapore. He was later
promoted to the post of senior audit officer in May 2004. Mr.
Tan later joined Kuek Brothers Furniture Sdn. Bhd. in 2005, a
manufacturer distributors and exporters in home furnishing in
Malaysia, as a marketing executive where he was responsible for
handling the company’s export markets. In 2006, Mr. Tan was
subsequently promoted as a branch assistant manager in both the
Muar and Kulai branches of Malaysia where he was responsible
for handling the company’s retail businesses. From September
2007 to February 2008, Mr. Tan worked as a sales and marketing
manager in T & L Office Solution Sdn. Bhd., a supplier in all kind
of office equipment. In 2008, Mr. Tan set up Billion Tree Asia, a
consulting firm providing financial analytical coaching services to
clients. Mr. Tan had been a director of Billion Tree Asia from 2008
to 2015. The company became inactive since 2015.

Subsequent to the reporting period, Mr. Tan resigned as an
Executive Director, the Compliance Officer and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from
13 June 2018.

Tan Cheng Siong %% 3855 ' AL ER
HITES o Tank £ R2016F12 AR E L
MAEEE UAFMHEZESNE - FEAE
R EBRETNEE - HHDHBERTIS
HEEZE  ERREEEPAKES - Tan
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f% °

R200245A8  Tanst £ RY C Tan & Co (—X
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F B B 7 o Tan 5t 4 H 1% 720054 h A Kuek
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Ka Hei (BBZXfE), aged 34, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 27 June 2017 and is a member of the Audit Committee,
and Nomination Committee and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October 2016.
He obtained his Bachelor's degree of Business Administration
in Business Economics from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2007.

In September 2007, Mr. Yau was employed as an associate of
the assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he
was responsible for evaluating internal control environments and
system processes, and identifying opportunities for improving
companies’ internal controls, operation workflows and integrity of
financial records. He then joined the Bank of Communications in
August 2010 as an officer of the company’'s finance department
where he was responsible for, among others, preparing IFRS
financial reports to the head office in the PRC and external
auditors. From February 2011 to November 2011, he worked as a
senior accountant at the assurance department of Ernst & Young.
From June 2012 to August 2016, Mr. Yau worked as an internal
auditor of Kaisun Energy Group Limited (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 8203) a company engaged in (i)
mining and metallurgical machineries production; (ii) provision of
supply chain management for mineral business; (iii) exploitation
and production of coal; and (iv) securities investment where he
was responsible for among others, (a) preparing internal control
report of operational and financial processes and reporting to the
audit committee of the company; and (b) performing due diligence
providing advice of the operational and financial arrangements for
merger and acquisition projects.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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From October 2016 to February 2017, Mr. Yau worked in Deckers
Asia Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Deckers
Outdoor Corporation (@ company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange) as an internal auditor, where he was responsible for
validating audit on operation and finance management. From June
2017 to August 2017, Mr. Yau worked as an assistant account
manager of Magico Group Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Properties Group Limited (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 1838), a company engaged
in property development and property investment in the PRC,
where he is responsible for overseeing accounting activities of
the company. Mr. Yau is currently finance manager of Hong Kong
company, which engaged in energy trading business.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (%R #8), aged 38, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a
member of Remuneration Committee and Chairman of the Audit
Ccommittee of the Company. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2003. Mr. Chu has more than 15 years working
experience in the accounting and company secretarial field.

Mr. Chu was a chief financial officer and company secretary
of KEE Holding Company Limited (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 2011) which is a subsidiary of
ZhongHong Holdings Limited (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code 979) and Ascent International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Chanco International Group Limited)
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 264).

Mr. Chu is a member of (i) the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; (i) the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; (iii) the Hong Kong Chartered Secretaries; and (iv)
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick (Z=8338), aged 37, was appointed
as our Independent Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and
is a member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics and Music from Emory University, United States
in December 2007. Further, he is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since July 2017.

From May 2005 to April 2008, Mr. Lee worked in various
institutions whereby he, inter alia, advised on business strategies
in relation to acquisition or investment opportunities. For the
period between April 2011 to May 2012, Mr. Lee worked for the
group companies of Morgan Stanley, Hong Kong as an analyst
in the international wealth management division in Hong Kong
where he was responsible for expanding PRC client base. Mr.
Lee then worked in the capacity of vice president of the private
banking department for Credit Suisse, Hong Kong for the period
between August 2012 to January 2013. From February 2014 to
June 2015, Mr. Lee worked for BOCI-Prudential Asset Management
Limited as vice president of the quantitative strategy business unit
of the company. He is currently an investment director of First
Impression Limited, a consulting firm, where he was responsible
for, inter alia, advising on investment structures and implementing
investment strategy aimed to enhance risk management.

Mr. Lee is currently an Executive Director of Gain Plus Holdings
Limited (@ company listed on Stock Exchange with stock code
8522), a company principally engaged in the provision of building
services and RMAA Services in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Phang Xue Zun, aged 33, is the chief project officer of
the group. He is responsible for providing pre-sales support to
our customers and handling technical supporting activities with
our sales and marketing team. Mr. Phang obtained his Diploma
in Construction Management from the Imperia Institute of
Technology, Malaysia in February 2006.

Mr. Phang joined the group in November 2005 as a production
supervisor where he was responsible for handling our production
activities in our production plant. He was subsequently promoted
as the sales engineer in May 2008 where he was primarily
responsible for sales and marketing activities of the group and
managing projects for customers in Klang Valley and the eastern
coast of West Malaysia. Mr. Phang was then promoted as the
assistant sales manager in September 2014 and was further
promoted as the chief project officer in January 2016. In October
2013, Mr. Phang and other Independent Third Parties established
Five Stars Laundry Sdn. Bhd., a company engaged in the business
of providing laundry, washing, cleaning and drying services. Mr.
Phang is currently a director and shareholder of the company.

Ms. Chau Wing Kei (FB&kH), aged 31, joined the group and was
appointed as the company secretary of the group on 9 December
2016. She graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor's degree in Science in November 2008. She has been
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2014.

She possesses over seven years of experience in aspect of
financial reporting, accounting, compliance, and auditing. From
September 2010 to July 2014, Ms. Chau had worked as an auditor
in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and her work mainly involved audit
and assurance services. In February 2015, Ms. Chau joined lllinois
Tool Works Inc. and her last position was senior internal auditor
and she was responsible for performing financial and operational
reviews of the subsidiaries.
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Mr. Albert Wong Mun Sum, aged 55, is the chief financial
officer of the group. He is responsible for the daily operations
and the financial and accounting activities of the group. Mr.
Wwong obtained his Bachelor ‘s degree of commerce from the
University of New South Wales in April 1986 where he further
obtained a Master ‘s degree of commerce in accounting in April
1988. Mr. Wong has been a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants since October 1993. He was admitted as a fellow
of the Institute of Financial Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Institute of Public Accountants in November 2012 in
Melbourne, Australia. He is also a registered GST agent in Malaysia
since 2015. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the
banking and accounting field.

Before joining our Group in December 2015, Mr. Wong worked as a
senior manager in the finance and accounts division of S&P Food
Manufacturing (M) Berhad for the period from September 1997 to
November 1999. In April 2000, Mr. Wong joined the Econstates
Berhad as its senior manager and then promoted as the general
manager of the finance department of the company. In July
2004, Mr. Wong worked as the finance controller of the finance
department of Haisan Resources Berhad. He then joined the Ireka
Development Management Sdn. Bhd. in April 2008 and worked as
a senior vice president of the corporate finance department. In
December 2009, Mr. Wong joined the Quill Construction Sdn. Bhd.
as the Chief Accountant. In July 2010, he was transferred to Quill
Automobiles (M) Sdn. Bhd. as the finance director of the finance
department of the company. In October 2011, Mr. Wong joined
the Montprimo Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as Macrodon Sdn.
Bhd.) as the general manager of the finance department and was
transferred to Fivestar Development (Puchong) Sdn. Bhd. where all
the terms and conditions of his employment remain unchanged.
He subsequently joined the Hatten Asset Management Sdn. Bhd.
as the financial controller in December 2013.
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Mr. Ma Hong Chee, aged 50 is the operations manager of the
group. He is responsible for overseeing the production activities
of our production plant. Mr. Ma completed SRP, Malaysia Sekolah
Menengah Tanah Putih, Kuantan, Pahang.

From October 1996 to April 2010, Mr. Ma joined Grobest Frozen
(M) Sdn., Bhd. where he was responsible for (i) setting up the
processing plant operation system; (ii) in production planning
and operation; (iii) monitoring purchasing flow and supplier
management flow; and (iv) implementing and managing marketing
programmes. His last position with the company was manager.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 40 is the factory manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of
the production activities of the group. Ms. Siew joined the group
as a human resource and administration executive in March 2013
and was promoted as our assistant factory manager in April 2015.
Ms. Siew was subsequently appointed as our factory manager in
August 2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Human
Development from the University Putra Malaysia in July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the
human resource officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where she
was responsible for general human resource functions which
include payroll, training and development, recruitment as well
as matters pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She
subsequently joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April
2003 as a human resource executive. In December 2007, Ms. Siew
joined Jordone Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a human resource and
administration executive. She was subsequently promoted to the
post of assistant administrative manager in August 2009 where
she was responsible for the company’s purchasing, advertising
and branding (including media and branding) as well as general
administration duties.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 May 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiary are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing
and trading of precast junction boxes, (i) trading of accessories
and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia and (iii) Japanese catering services in Hong
Kong.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Group has compiled with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 38 to 53 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended 31 May
2018 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 4 to 6 and the business review and outlook of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. The discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and the
material factor underlying its financial performance and financial
position are set out in the “Four Years Financial Summary” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 139 and pages
7 to 16 respectively.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2018 and
the state of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 61.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 May 2018 (2017: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statement and the Prospectus, is set out on page 139
on this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company'’s share capital and movements of during
the Year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity set out on pages 62 to 64 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2018, the Company’'s reserve available for
distribution which consists of retained profit and the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RM6.8
million (2017: RM9.9 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the law of Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 May 2018.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and
suppliers are key stakeholders to the Group’s success. The
Group strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging employees, providing quality products and services
to our customers, collaborating with suppliers to deliver quality
sustainable products and services and supporting our community.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 24.5% of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 8.7% of the Group’s
revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 42.3% of the Group's purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 14.6% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong (resigned on 13 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Chu Kin Ming

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

By virtue of Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Chu Kin Ming shall retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election at the said meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong has entered into a service or an appointment
letter with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ written notice
served by either party on the other, and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in Articles.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service or an appointment letter with the Company for a fixed
term of three years, which may be terminated by not less than
one months” written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
or an appointment letter which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 17 to 24.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year and at any time during
the Year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the

Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the Year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and the
company through which he holds equity interests in the Company,
namely Merchant World Investments Limited, have entered into
a Deed of Non-Competition with the Company on 27 June 2017.
The details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been disclosed
in the Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed with the Company
that they had complied with the non-competition undertakings
during the year ended 31 May 2018. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed and
confirmed the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
by the controlling shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float or not less than 25% of the
Shares are in the hands of the public as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 May 2018, none of the Directors, nor the substantial
shareholders of the Company and any their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by RHB Capital Hong Kong Limited (“RHB Capital”),
compliance adviser of the Company, except for (i) RHB Capital’s
participation as the sole sponsor in relation to the Listing, and
(i) the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and RHB Capital dated 27 June 2017, neither RHB
Capital nor any of its close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) and none of the directors or employees of RHB
Capital had any interest in the share capital of our Company or
any member of our Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities, if any) which is required to be notified to our
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as of
31 May 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2018, the interests and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO (i) as required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest or/or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (i) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

54 REHE

Interest in controlled
corporation
SRR EE

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)

Loh Swee Keong st 4 (K7 :#2)
Notes:
(1 The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.
(2) Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh

Swee Keong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Merchant World Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

EEREIFETBRABRARAREE
EERNRG - HEAROREREFAE
wRAR

201845318 » KRR EERFETHA
BRARR AT AR AE(ERLES?

REEGRPIFEXVED) WD - HEE R D HE
RBET - HENREEZLHERMFEXVE
FIRSD BB G A RR MB R e s &
KB (BREREEZ A GO A R 5RR
SREFABRAERNERE R LXER)
() BRFNARBIRIEEZ R BEROIE
352{F FE M B LMy FOXA - i) R
RGEM ET R BIES A6 AT EBITAE
FETRZNAEREANEARR] RER
P s KORB T :

Number of
issued
ordinary
shares held
(Note 1)
FriEe 1T
ZEREAR
(#a1)

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital of

the Company
ERANE|
ERITRAE
BABED L

317,020,000 (L) 51.13%

) EXTERORFEALRBONOEE -

(2 Merchant World Investments Limited & —%
REBEZESEMKIIA AT - WALoh
Swee Keongst £ = B A © IRIEFE F K H
E & - Loh Swee Keongse £ R B H
Merchant World Investments Limited#5 B &)
TEHRODFHEEER



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEgRE

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO), or (i) as required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
(iii)y as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors of the
Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 May 2018, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed of the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 and SFO were
as follows:
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ordinary Shares of the Company

Merchant World Investments Limited
Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2)
Woon Sow Sum#z + (#f:22)

Greater Elite Holdings Limited

Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3)
BERREE (K3

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4)
Cheng Lai Wah ChristinaZzz + (# i£4)

EATEBR
Approximate
Number of percentage
Capacity/ Shares of
Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
::&vig S §c] B R R
B HEmHEE (K1) AoLE
Beneficial owner 317,020,000 (L) 51.13%
EmnHEAA
Interest of spouse 317,020,000 (L) 51.13%
fic 48 # 2=
Beneficial owner 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
EmnHEAA
Interest in controlled 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
corporation
SRS A E =
Interest of spouse 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%

(R £

Notes:.

M

2

The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.

Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh
Swee Keong has interest under the SFO.

Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
and is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung
Yuen Paul is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Greater Elite Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen
Paul and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which
Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2018, the Company has
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,

intere
the C

sts or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
ompany which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full time and part time), or any member of the Group,
including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
27 June 2017 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
to grant options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the
shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the date of the grant
of option.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the
date of the shares of the Company listed on the GEM, being
62,000,000 shares (or such numbers of shares as shall result from
a subdivision or a consolidation of such 62,000,000 from time to
time) (the “Scheme Limit"). Subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the approval by the
shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant options beyond
the Scheme Limit to Eligible Participants specifically identified by
the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme an any other share option scheme of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes
of the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will
result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each Participants in any
twelve months period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.
Any further grant of options is subject to shareholders” approval in
general meeting with such Eligible Participants and his associates
abstaining from voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an options is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option
at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at
least the highest of: () the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its or any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
and the Chief Executives (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in
the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there were no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company (as defined
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules) which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.
Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
in the usual course of business are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitute a connected transaction or a continuing
connected transaction, which needs to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31 May
2018 are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association
("Articles of Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties
in their offices. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement during the
Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Company recognised its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is
committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental practices to ensure our business meet
the required standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.
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DONATION
During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other
donation for approximately RM22,043 (2017: RM31,417).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during
the Year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2018 have
been audited by Deloitte PLT (LLP0010145-LCA) who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA) as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

SK Target Group Limited
Loh Swee Keong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2018

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Since the Listing, the Board has recognised that transparency and
accountability is important to a listed company. Therefore, the
Board and the senior management of the Group is committed to
achieve a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate
good corporate governance practices for improving the
accountability and transparency in operations, and to strengthen
the internal control and risk management systems from time to
time so as to protect the rights of the shareholders and enhance
shareholder value. The Directors consider that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is crucial for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy corporate
culture which in return benefits the Group’s stakeholders as a
whole.

The Board has adopted and save as disclosed in the following
paragraph complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. Upon the Listing date and up to 31 March 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”), the Board is of the opinion that the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG
code. The Directors will continue to review and monitor its
corporate governance practices in order to enhance its corporate
governance standard, to comply with the increasingly tightened
regulatory requirements from time to time, and to meet the rising
expectation of shareholders and other stakeholders of the Group.

Under the code provision A.21 of the CG Code, the role of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating
and managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to
have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
complied with the code provision of the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors since the Listing Date
(19 July 2017) to the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Directors, including one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu
Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the
Board.

Overall Accountability

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability.
The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good
faith in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of
skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements. The Board has the full support from the
Executive Directors and the senior management of the Company
to discharge its responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior

management are set out in the section headed with “Directors
and Senior Management Profiles” of this report.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies
and business plans, and monitoring internal controls and
performances. The overall management of the Company’s
business is vested in the Board which assumes the responsibility
for promoting the success of the Company by supervising its
affairs. The Board focuses on formulating the Group’s overall
strategies, approving the annual development plan and budget;
monitoring financial and operating performance; reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system and supervising the
management’s performance. Regarding the Group's corporate
governance, the Board is responsible for performing following
duties:

(@ determined and reviewed the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

(b)y reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and

(c)  reviewed and monitored the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings concerning
securities transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Directors are reminded of their
obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following
specific enquiries by the Group, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code from the Listing Date and up to 31 May 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In
view of Mr. Loh has been operating and managing the operating
subsidiaries of the Group since 1993, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Loh taking up
both roles for effective management and business development.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from the CG
Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings,
it meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances.

During the year, 6 Board meetings have been held for the
discussion and approval of important matters such as the
approval of quarterly results, interim results, annual results and
dividends, etc. The attendance record of each Director during the
year at Board meetings is as follows:
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Attendance

Attended/

Eligible

to Attend

HE EER

Name of Director o R #

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong %t &= 6/6

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong (resigned on 13 June 2018) Tan Cheng Siong 4t 4 (R20184F 6 H13H & 1F) 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Mr. Yau Ka Hei BRE & 6/6

Mr. Chu Kin Ming RERRASCAE 6/6

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick TRAE ST 6/6

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Group has not established a corporate governance committee
and thus the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such as reviewing and
determining the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group, developing the Group’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.
To enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the
Company ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at the Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner. Notice of regular Board
meetings is given to all Directors and they can include matters
for discussion in the agenda as they think fit. Draft minutes of
Board meeting shall be circulated to all Directors for comments
prior to confirmation of the minutes. The signed minutes are kept
by the Company Secretary. Every Board member has full access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. They are also entitled to have full access
to Board documents and related materials so that they are able
to make an informed decision.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Chu Kin Ming shall retire at
the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed
to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive
Directors is required to inform the Group as soon as practicable
if there is any change that may affect his/her independence.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independency
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers these Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to participate
in professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a director of a listed company. During the year
ended 31 May 2018, the Directors have read relevant materials on
topics relating to corporate governance and regulatory updates
on discloseable transactions and connected transactions etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely the
audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The
terms of reference of the Board’'s committee are posted on the
Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange and
are available to shareholders upon request.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

BYFWTESFTIRETCHERT  HA
RIE@UREREREREREME - MERE
WA EEBIMNEE  ZHILIFNT
EREANYEBEATERL TERBANALHE -
ARBDRERBIIIFNTESFTRIECGEM L
MR ESORELNFERIERRE
BARRPIRRZEBUIIFNTESTHEE L
AL e

FEEXRRE
REREZBEEABEZEEANIAMS
MIBEATHESSFLER  ARAEBE
E2HREXERABLATE - NWIBERS
BEEBBLTAREENAG  BELE
B2 ME R - 82201855310 1L F
B EFCHEEHCXERZENERY
HAREBATHRBERIRBEXSHENE
EEH o

EEEeZETE
EXeCRY-EEEERES  DHARE
“ZZBEe((BEREEE]) FMHZES(H
Mzgg) i ZBe((REEEE) -
EXeZ B8N BREENAR R ML K
RATBUETIE - WRIRRE D ZREAHE
B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREARSE

Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three members namely,
Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chu Kin Ming.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

@)

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor, and be
primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
guestions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review with the Group’s management, external auditors
and internal auditor, where an internal audit function exists
in the Company, the adequacy of the Group's policies
and system regarding internal controls (including financial,
operational and compliance controls), risk management
system and any statement by the Directors of the Company
to be included in the annual accounts prior to endorsement
by the Board;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and the annual, quarterly and interim
financial reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them prior to approval by the
Board, with particular focus on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with the accounting and auditing
standards; and
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(vi) compliance with the listing requirements on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(d) Oversee the issuer’'s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

()  to review the Company's financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board
risk committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

(i) to review arrangements employees of the Group can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. The Committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

(i) to review the draft representation letter prior to
approval by the Board;

(iv) to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an
effective system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
issuer’'s accounting and financial reporting function;
and

(v)  to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
four meetings have been being held for the Audit Committee
and all the members of the Committee attended the meetings.
The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
27 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
Subsequent to the reporting period, on 13 June 2018, Mr. Tan
Cheng Siong resigned as a member of Remuneration Committee
and Mr. Loh Swee Keong was appointed as a member of
Remuneration Committee. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Chu Kin Ming. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

(@ to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief
executive of the Company (where applicable) about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. The
committee should have access to independent professional
advice if necessary,

(b) review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; or (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company,

(e)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
and
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(f)  review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
one meeting has been held for the Remuneration Committee.

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the
appointment letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix
16 of the Listing Rules have been set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three members,
namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Lee,
Alexander Patrick. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Loh Swee Keong.

The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include the followings:

(@ review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;
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(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors of the Company and succession
planning for Directors of the Company, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company; and

(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members,
review the policy and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the policy and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the
corporate governance report annually.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of measurable aspects
including but not limited to educational background, professional
qualifications, age, ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regards
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. No restrictions, like age,
gender, and ethnic origin, will be set for the selection of Board
members. The Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the business of the Group. The Nomination
Ccommittee will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs
of the business of the Group.

The Company was listed on 19 July 2017. During the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this report, one meeting has been
held for the Nomination Committee and all the members of the
committee attended the meeting.

2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, the
Independent Non-executive Directors should attend general
meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the visions
of shareholders. At the 2017 annual general meeting held on
25 October 2017, all the Independent Non-executive Directors
attended the meeting.
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From the Listing Date to the date of this report, the attendance
record of each Director is set out in the table below:

BETEMEEARERME SEENHH
JFROERFMN T &

Number of attendance/number of meetings from the

Name of Directors

EEgE
Audit
Committee
meeting
EREES
=

Board
meeting
EER
=

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Loh Swee Keong 6/6 N/A
Loh Swee Keong %t 4 T~ iE A
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong 6/6 N/A
Tan Cheng Siong %t 4+ i A
Independent Non-

executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei 6/6 4/4
BRELE
Mr. Chu Kin Ming 6/6 4/4
e N
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick 6/6 4/4
FHMB L

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results
and cash flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards and principles and the disclosure requirements under
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated
financial statements prepared by the Board and to report their
opinion to the shareholders of the Company. The statements
by external auditor, Deloitte PLT (LLP0010145-LCA), about their
reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group
are set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 54 to
60 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control and risk management systems and for monitoring their
effectiveness to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
assets of the Group. The internal control system of the Group
aims to facilitate efficient operation which in turn reduces the
risks to which the Group is exposed. The internal control and risk
management systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group's
business objectives.

The Group recognises that effective risk management is essential
for the long-term development on the Group’s business. The
management is responsible for establishing, implementing
and reviewing the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. The Audit
Committee will periodically review the Group’s compliance status
with the Hong Kong laws and will perform its functions by (i)
reviewing the internal control and legal compliance; (i) discussing
the internal control systems with the management of the Group
to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control system and (iii) considering the major
investigation findings on internal control matters as delegated by
the Board or its own initiative and the management’s response
to these findings. While taking into full account of the new
requirements effective from the Listing Date under the GEM Listing
Rules brought by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
relating to risk management and internal control, the management
has formulated the risk management and control framework. All
employees are committed to implement the risk management
framework into the daily operation.

In addition, the Group engaged an independent internal control
consultant (“Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct
an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system in various material
aspects including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Based upon the recommendations from the Internal Control
Consultant, the Group has taken remedial actions. Further, in
order to continuously improve the Group’s corporate governance
in the future the Group will adopt the measures recommended
by the Internal Control Consultant.
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Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the remuneration paid or
payable to Deloitte PLT in respect of the statutory audit services
and non-audit services for the Group are as follows:

RELERSER  ARABRSABEER
RBREERRCZ/HELERBERE

B

HZE2018F5A31BIEFE - AEER EZEE
1% B 7% I 3F 28 % AR 7% B 1 = JE 1< Deloitte PLT
BT -

Fee paid/
Nature of Services payables
BB
PR 7% 1 & & H
HK$'000
FHET
Audit services = %R 15 950
Non-audit services I 2 % AR 15 Nil
i3

COMPANY SECRETARY NEWME

Ms. Chau Wing Kei was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 9 December 2016. All Directors have access
to the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Ms. Chau
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for
the year ended 31 May 2018. The biographical details of Ms.
Chau are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by
poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

Bk ELZ T ER2016F12A9BEZ X AAR
AN ARIWE - 2REEHASKAAIME
BB UWEREFSWNIEFRAAREMBE
Bl RAIRRAIDEEN - AL TEREZE
20185 A3 L FEEZ T L5/ N KA A8
BEEEI - AR tHNERFBHNANFR
FUVEUE[EERaREBEBEHN]—& -

B SRR
EREP—BRER RN S RENEEE
ARBRRAGERBZEERZA(BEHEERE
AEF)REBLRABRNAEBRREE LK
R e RIBCGEMEMMA - RIER ARG LIS
RATERBRBARBRBIRETALRR - M
BRERRAERBREBBRRANSERREE
B2 FfT 48k Ko 7 2 A48 uh T &R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREARSE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meetings (“EGM")

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the
Articles (as amended from time to time), and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time):

(@ EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition (the “Requisition”), not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings (the “Eligible Shareholders”).
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two Months after the
deposit of such requisition;

(b)y  The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 101, 1/F, Chung Nam Building, 1 Lockhart
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or to Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board and/
or the Company Secretary;,

(c) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors
and management of the Company. Such questions, requests,
comments and suggestions can be addressed to the Company
by post to Room 101, 1/F, Chung Nam Building, 1 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2861 1999.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Limited, by post to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2980
1333. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together
with their detailed contact information for the prompt response
from the Company if it deems appropriate.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy between itself and its shareholders, and investors which
aims to set out the principles of the Company in relation
to the shareholders’ communications, with the objective of
ensuring timely, transparent and accurate communications
between the shareholders of the Company and the Company.
These include answering questions through the annual general
meeting, the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website
at www.targetprecast.com and meetings with investors and
shareholders. News update of the Group's business development
and operation are also available on the Company's website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the “Constitutional
Documents”) on 27 June 2017 and effective upon the Listing.
During the year ended 31 May 2018, there has been no changes
in the Company's Constitutional documents. A copy of the
Company's updated Constitutional Documents is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYXBEA®RE

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (collectively referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 May 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 May 2018, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information as set out on pages
61 to 138.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position as at 31 May 2018, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF0080)
Level 16, Menara LGB

1 Jalan Wan Kadir

Taman Tun Dr. Ismail

60000 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel: +60 3 7610 8888

Fax: +60 3 7726 8986
myaaa@deloitte.com
www.deloitte.com/my
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With effect from 3 January 2017, Deloitte, a conventional partnership firm with the Registration No. AF0080, was converted to Deloitte PLT (LLP0010145-LCA) (AF0080).

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of its
member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/my/about to learn more

about our global network of member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUREHMES

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE AND OTHER ETHICAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

We are independent of the Group in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matters that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current year. The matter
was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
the matter.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BYXBEA®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continuea)

Impairment of trade receivables

BREZER@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

B 5 W R R E

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by the management on the evaluation of
the recoverability of trade receivables.

MR EIEERTHE SR FRIAN ] [ YR E 5 E
o R E - BRPISE S EWGIEREH R A
REZEHE-

To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the counterparty and default or
significant delay in payments. The management also
considers the creditworthiness, the past collection
history of each customer, ageing analysis and
subsequent settlement of individual balances.
RETREERERENTHEE S E5ESZE
ZIHEAZ  PINHFAHBEENEGEIERNUBRE
HUARKRKABEENROITENE EBENE
ZRENEARRI  BEEFPBANKREHE - K
BAONMKEREHNERENER -

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics.
WMERENEEEE  ARBERENSBERER
DERABEUEERREHEMNEENATEBLER
FUA G o

As set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is RM18.3 million (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of RM0.4 million) as at 31 May 2018.

WINGRE MRS R FE17ATE - B 5 EMGIER2018
F5AMAMERMEA18IEEST (MR REREEL

BESH) -

BEMHNELNMNEERAEELSE

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:
BMEBEESERFIBIRKEENIETBRIE:

e Obtained an understanding of the Group’s control over
the credit and collection process and monitoring of
outstanding receivables;

e TH ESEHEERWKMBAES - WEIZERE

e Tested aging of trade receivable balances at year end
on a sample basis;
e MEAHFEREFEWKRIBHRE

e Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables and
identified any debtors with financial difficulty through
inquiry with management,

e FRMHEEBEEEEN  NERAKREEERKAKIENEFE -
LA K2 58 B 4T (2] 75 B R R 0 (B 75 A

e Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with management
and with reference to credit profile of the customers;
and

s FRMMERENRULZERTLHNEAMR  FEZE
AEREUKRIENAIEKREE &

e Assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts at year end against
subsequent settlements.

s FRLHBRFAAEECBBEEBLEMNBR  FHZSE
BRI EIEE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUREHMES

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements of the Group or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The directors of the Company are
also responsible for such internal control as the directors of the
Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYXBEA®RE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the content of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUREHMES

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continuedq)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements of the Group represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors of the Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors of the Company with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors of the
Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

DELOITTE PLT (LLP0010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF 0080)

KHONG SIEW CHIN
Partner - 03049/03/2019 J
Chartered Accountant
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREREMEERSE X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2018

B E2018F5A3MH L&
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RM’'000 RM'000
Viokz3 a1 F
Revenue A 5 38,194 33,595
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (29,433) (23,172)
Gross profit EF 8,761 10,423
Other income E A U A 356 948
Administrative expenses THRAX (7,469) (3,342)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (1,195) (1,331)
Listing expenses A% (2,336) (6,048)
Finance costs B & A AN 8 (26) (57)
Fair value change of financial assets at R AFEHAEBZHE
fair value through profit or loss BEEMNATEED 13
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BB AT (E18), & 7 9 (1,909) 606
Taxation TIE 10 (1,181) (1,715)
Loss for the year FANBAE (3,090) (1,109)
Other comprehensive loss items that A EFHHEZE
will not be reclassified to profit or BmmEMmEAEE
loss: EHE:
Exchange differences arising on RINEEERRE S
translation from functional 2 EBEERN
currency to presentation currency M H =58 —
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 EE 18 4258 (1,109)
Loss per share: T EE:
Basic (RM cent) AEAR(L=F 11 (0.29)

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEFS I s At SR A M MEN — &9 -
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

AS AT 31 MAY 2018

2018454310
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RM’'000 RM'000
ks a1 5T
Non-Current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERZRE 13 3,218
Investment property w"EYE 14 401
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 15 —
Total Non-Current Assets kRBEEHLE 3,619
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 1,350 651
Receivables, deposits and prepayment B FIE - % & K&
SEERE-N 17 19,897 15,873
Amount owing from ultimate holding &Y & 4R #5 A% A &) 5018
company 18 9
Amount owing from a shareholder JiE Uk A% B 5k IE 18 7
Tax recoverable Ay i B 7 18 166
Short-term bank deposits pledged ERTRITHEERT
with banks TR 19 1,059
Cash on hand and at bank FHERIRTHRS 7,248
Total Current Assets REBEEHAME 25,013
Current Liabilities REBAEE
Payables and accrued charges FERRIE R EFER 20 8,450
Amount owing to a director JENZEEHRIE 18 570
Finance leases MERE 21 172
Tax payable FEAH IR 399
Total Current Liabilities REBAEALE 9,591
Net Current Assets BRBEE 33 15,422
Total Assets Less Current HEERRBAE
Liabilities 19,041
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI K

AS AT 31 MAY 2018
720185 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174

RM’000 RM’'000

A+ A=
< A Ed=

Non-Current Liabilities EFRBEE

Finance leases mEHE 21 41
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIEAE 147
Total Non-Current Liabilities FkRBEELE 558
Net Assets REE 18,483
Capital and Reserves B E

Share capital % Z< 22 3,382 —
Share premium f&% 5 % (B 23 19,891 —
Other reserve H b 24 8,579 8,579
Translation reserve VE W 25 (974) —
Retained profits &8 4 A 6,814 9,904
Total Equity B 37,692 18,483

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 138 were  FARFOIEIBBEMGE T HMEHEFTE R
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 201848 A24H#t AWK FIZE - WH T 5%

24 August 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREZ:
Loh Swee Keong Chu Kin Ming
KEH
Director Director
o Ea

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated  BEMIMI IR L S AR BERERN — 2 H o
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZEER

Share Retained
Share capital premium Other reserve profits

B K40 i At R & A
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

FoE 4% Fok Fou

At 31 May 2016 R2016 58318 — — 570 11,013 11,583
Loss and total comprehensive & RE1E R

loss for the year 2EEELE — — — (1,109) (1,09)
Acquisition of the equity ARAIREAERRABEE

interest in subsidiary FEE- NGNS

companies by an
intermediate holding
company of the
Company pursuant to the

reorganisation — — (570) — (570)
Capital injection and issuance £ & R %17 17

of shares — — 8,579 - 8,579
At 31 May 2017 R2017F5A318 — — 8,579 9904 18,483

Share Other  Translation Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
R % 17 )% (B Hit E % f# REEA #at

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
R S - S & S o S &

At 1 June 2017 RW201756A1H 8,579 9,904 18,483

Loss for the year FRER = (3,090) (3,090)

Exchange differences mNEEERER
arising on translation BEFIEBEEN

from functional ERER

currency to

presentation currency (974)
Total comprehensive loss — F N2 EERAE

for the year (3,090) (4,064)
Issuance of new shares — BEBATH A BT

through:
Capitalisation (Note 22(d) &k (#fi222(@) (2,400)
Placement of and public ~ EEERAREZEE

offering (Note 22(a)) (Hi220) 26,511
Transaction costs BONBRELERS

attributable to issue of KR

new shares (4,220) (4,220)
At 31 May 2018 #W2018%5A31H 19,891 8,579 37,692

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEMIFI sE BRI Z AP HBHRERH — LD -
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERNER

2017
20174
RM'000
F<&
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETEH
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BB AT (B 18), & 7 606
Adjustments for: HATHEELAE:
Depreciation of: WTEIENE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB &ZE 426
Investment property wEWE 10
Bad debts written off 122 BR 8% 18
Finance costs & B AR 57
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEME BMELZED
plant and equipment &ia, (a) (13)
Fair value change of financial assets at A FETAEB DN @
fair value through profit or loss BEEMRAFEZS (13)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign REIRINEEIE (W)
exchange (15)
Allowance for doubtful debts IR —
Allowance for doubtful debts no longer 78 B{F R R R 1E
required -
Impairment of goodwill GESNED —
Interest income B A (54)
Operating profit before working capital EEECEFEAN
changes # 5 T 1,022
Movements in working capital: LEELEE:
(Increase)/Decrease in: THEBOEEM R
Inventories EASS (398)
Receivables, deposits and FEUGIE -~ e RFER K
prepayment (4,292)
Increase in: T A& BN -
Payables and accrued charges FER KRB R EE A 2,320
Amount due to a director JENEERIE -
Net Cash Used In Operations EIEMAR e FHE (552)
Income tax paid BT EH (1,727)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities LEEBATAR S FRE (2,279)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

2017
20174
RM'000
H
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceed from disposal of property, i ’%% ¥ HWEK
plant and equipment REMISRIE 113
Interest received 2472 14
Repayment from/(Advance to) Hx%ﬁm /(1R % 3R #4 5K
a shareholder (7)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets H&ERAFETARBRH
at fair value through profit or loss B EMMERIE 848
Advance to ultimate holding company RETFTEEIERARINEAR )
Repayment (to)/from a director (MEFER)EBER 197
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E W - ME L& E
(Note) (K1 at) (754)
Net Cash (Used In)/From Investing WEEB(FTA), B
Activities REFE 402
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTRM G RIE —
Decrease in short-term bank deposits M TFHETHEESETER
pledged with banks A 330
Dividend paid BB (2,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITIER (1,312)
New bank borrowings raised FIERITIER 697
Investment from pre-IPO investor BALAHESHKREEDN
®E 8,579
Finance costs paid TR E KR (57)
Repayment of financial leases HERMEHRE (308)
Net Cash From Financing Activities BEEEFSIR S FE 5,929
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERNER

2018 2017
20184 20174

RM'000 RM’000
4 T4

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HRERRELZEEYHEMNFEHE
EQUIVALENTS 15,783 4,052

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERREEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,181
Effects of exchange differences fEREENTE 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERRERBESEEY

END OF YEAR REPRESENTED BY
Cash on hand and at bank BEFEMBITRS 7,248

Note: Purchases of property, plant and equipment during the year have  ffit - FRBEBEWE  BMELRBREEBU TR
been financed as below: REES:

By cash AR &

By finance leases BRMERE 729

1,483

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated — BEMIFI R It S A BB RERN — 2D -
Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 19 July
2017. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as a private limited liability company on 28 October 2016.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business are P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and 18, Jalan
LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana, 43300 Seri Kembangan,
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia, respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant wWorld”),
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company
of the Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company who wholly owns
Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes, trading of
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental
and ancillary services in Malaysia. The principal activities
and other particulars of the subsidiary companies are set
out in Note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to nearest
thousands (RM'000), unless otherwise stated.

—REHR
AARRRAEHESTMEIHA
BERRQA - ERHE 8201747719
HEREEH SR SHHMERRFGEM
£ e AR R HR2016F10828H £ 7
EREFMER LA —RALABRA
Al o GET P BEEH E N E B i B
2 R AP.O. Box 1350, Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands 218, Jalan LP
2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana, 43300
Seri Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °

Merchant World Investments Limited
(TMerchant World] - — X X B &
ZHE(RBEZHEHEDEMK LA
BRAFBRARAINEE R ZEER
AF] ° Loh Swee Keongit 4 A AR A
BB 4 4L ®) 77 - I 2 & % B Merchant
world

ARABZ—RBEZRAR  MAK
BEREXBANBERADRERAR
ERIESRIVHEENES KR
EBEIUNREHEALEREE
REERY - WBARNEIEXBR
H Al S B a0 M 533 -

GANBRADUBRBES & (4
ENEI - ANAEADNDEEE -
BREHPI FEBELDNEES
BETHB(TSH)
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

In 2017, in preparation for the proposed initial listing of the
shares of the Company on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group underwent a reorganisation
(the “"Reorganisation”) as described below.

The Reorganisation involved the setting up of the Company,
Gallant Empire Ltd (“Gallant Empire”), SK Target Holdings
Sdn. Bhd. (“SK Target Holdings”) and Loyal Earn Ltd
(“Loyal Earn”), and interspersing the Company, Gallant
Empire, SK Target Holdings and Loyal Earn between Target
Precast Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“Target Precast”), Target
Sales & Marketing Sdn. Bhd. (“Target S&M"), and Target
Crane & Logistic Sdn. Bhd. (“Target C&L") and Mr. Loh
Swee Keong, the director and sole beneficial owner of these
group of entities. The Company, Gallant Empire, SK Target
Holdings, Loyal Earn, Target Precast, Target S&M, and Target
C&L were under common control by Mr. Loh Swee Keong
throughout the year ended 31 May 2017 or since their
respective dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter
period. The Company is the holding company after the
Reorganisation and forming part of the Group. The Group
comprising the Company and its subsidiary companies
resulted from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared using the principles of merger
accounting. The consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows of the Group have been prepared as if the group
structure upon completion of the Reorganisation had
been in existence throughout the year or since their date
of incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated statements of financial position of the Group
as of 31 May 2017 have been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the
Group as if the group structure upon completion of the
Reorganisation had been in existence at those dates taking
into account the respective date of incorporation, where
applicable.
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mE MK |RM

—RER @)

R20177%F - REBARR KON EEH
ERGAMERATGEMEITERE R
i AREETTEATER]D
AT e

BHEP NIRRT - Gallant Empire
Ltd ([Gallant Empire]) - SK Target
Holdings Sdn. Bhd.([SK Target
Holdings]) ¥ Loyal Earn Ltd ([Loyal
Earnl) - A Kk B & 2 =] Gallant
Empire + SK Target Holdings X Loyal
Earnyt ATarget Precast Industries Sdn.
Bhd. ([Target Precast]) - Target Sales
& Marketing Sdn. Bhd. ([Target S&MJ)
KTarget Crane & Logistic Sdn. Bhd.
([Target C&LJ)fLoh Swee Keongit
FEEEREERE—BEREAA)
2 . &K A @~ Gallant Empire ~ SK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSSs")

New and Revised IFRS in Issue but Not Yet
Effective

In the current financial year, the Group adopted all the new
and revised IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") that are
effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after
1 June 2017 as follows:

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs did not result in significant changes in
the accounting policies of the Group and had no significant
effect on the financial performance or position of the Group,
other than the following:

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

The Group's liabilities arising from financing activities consist
of finance lease in Note 21. A reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances of this item is provided in
Note 28. Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior period. Apart from the additional
disclosure in Note 28, the application of these amendments
has had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

2.

BRAN TR e RS BT B B B S R
2 A ([ B PR B 75 3 5 22 A )

© 78 5 {8 2 AR £ Y H 7T I AR
15 57 B BR Bt 75 3R 5 22 A
RABMBFER - AEB S RMNR2017F
6 AR 2 1% B A B F JZ B BRI ) A 2%
MABEREFEERES (EREFTE
RIEEE)BMHOME M LRER]
B R B 75 i 5 R S B BR B 75 3R 5
AIRERTAN T

B EAETROET REE
BREHERENRNET RAERBEER
BELREEE

BIFR 81 75 3 5 £ 8120142016 B B 60 F B

BT &S - R F R RAEAEFT
BIBR B A5 3R 5 2 A R B R B 5 o 5 2
AIMERT T EEKRARE SRR
EXEH AHAKENPHRRNL
N AN

BREt ERE7RNEITHRE
it &

AEBEERAFEERERZLFER] -
ZEEBIERERRHREFTEURE
MHBRERENFEEREESM
ELXNREZY BRASRIFRE
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AEEERERDELINAEEREHN
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FEREVEBR AP TR 285 1 © RIB(EFT
ZBREGX AEBEYERBEEFZ
LB E R o BRI 28 ANR B SN -
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BRERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

2. ERAFAIRKETEBRMBHRS
A (B PR Bt B 3R 5 22 R o)

C BB E R EREER

REETEZEMHBRERER - 286
18 1 R A 20 e 7 5 81 3 8 4R 2 3R 4
RFTET R EEFTBEIR M | S A &

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

Standards in Issue but Not Yet Effective

At the date of authorisation for issue of these financial
statements, the new and revised IFRSs and amendments
to IFRSs which were in issue but not yet effective and not

early adopted by the Group are as listed below:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

Clarifications to IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to 1AS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10

Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued
by IASB in July 2014)'

Revenue from Contract with
Customers'

Revenue from Contract with
Customers'

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
Leases®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

BFR M| EEHETHIINT

ERMBEE
R F9%:

BEGHRELAE
155
BEGHRELAE
155 8988
BEGHRELAE
2RMERT
BEGHRELAE

7

tRIA(RFeiEqEs
R0 ETARHBNE
B B T 3R 45 2R B 550 %%)

RERFAHHEA

REEFAAMHEA
DR BERNGTNRHH

SRR &
RERHRSENFER

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendments, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

and IAS 28

Amendments to 1AS 19

Amendments to 1AS 28

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle®

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted. Overlay approach
to be applied when IFRS 9 is first applied. Deferral approach
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 and only available for three years after that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)
Standards in Issue but Not Yet Effective

(continued)

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

6 Effective date deferred to a date to be determined and

announced by MASB.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact
on the financial performance and the financial position of
the Group other than the following:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

@)

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI). All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(©)

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanism
currently available in 1AS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of nonfinancial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of IFRS 9 in the future may have impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until the Group
completes a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

2.

R R AMERT BB B S 3R 5
ZR (B BREER D)

B BHRELENBISHREFS
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BERYHERELENEGRFIEE—2
mER - HEBRESEEFPAMNM
EEZWREAR - RERMERSE
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Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer F— BAIEEPIILMNEH

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the EH BRAEHNTRHBEHNERE
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price F=F EEXHE

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance ENE: BRGEIEZEHNTHE
obligations in the contract HEE

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity FRF RN(EE)EBTKNBENEM
satisfies a performance obligation e i SR A

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
customers (continuead)

In 2017, the IASB issued clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of IFRS 15 in the future to have a material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosure made in these
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until
the Group completes a detailed review.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under the IFRS 16 lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.
Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement where the Group is lessee. The application
of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of IFRS 16 in the future may have impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, It is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until the Group
completes a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting policies which conform with
IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements have included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
the reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in 1AS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. Ej(ﬁ"l'ﬂl%(ﬁ)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices “ERBABBEAREERAE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the TE&IF‘%&%&%%%)\%M% '
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and FE—RRERIN: R

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset . FoERBABBREELBE
or liability. B~ A] B B g A BUE o

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. ERANTEZEGTHESHN T -

Basis of consolidation EOtE%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the RENBRREEARARENBEA

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary AMBBEERER - FSARRRFAETINE

companies. Control is achieved when the Company: S+ BIAR B BRAS 12 R

. has power over the investee; . BRENEGIREH R

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its . 2 /\Txé{ﬁ%‘iﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ %A
involvement with the investee; and BEIGAEER: &

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. . BRENAABENFZEHEB®R -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee WESERBRER M =BT

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to =P E-HXZEHEFEEL  AAEE

one or more of the three elements of control listed above. FEMTHEERERENRERE
il #E o

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins when the B AR R ERE ARRA S BEESG K
Group obtains control over the subsidiary company and BRBIMEGIERRAR  YARER
ceases when the Group loses control over the subsidiary KEWNB AR AL BRI - B8
company. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary mME FRAAKEXLENBRAH
company acquired or disposed of during the year are WARBZ T BAREBRGESEL
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive BB AGEEZEAKER EEXR
income from the date the Group gains control until the date SETHEZHNMNBEARNBE AL -

when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEFRE YHWBEATNM B RE

statements of a subsidiary company to bring its accounting ELAE  FESHBRERAEEN

policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. FEFEAR o

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses EHEASEBERERR BRXINME

and cash flows relating to transactions between members SEAARIENEE - BF - RE - I

of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. A FERBERENGFS BT EHY
i e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Merger accounting for business
combination involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling party’'s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless the date of the common control
combination.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for the sales
related tax (e.g. goods and services tax).

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of goods (Continued)

(M

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of
incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a
reduction of rental income over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary benefits
are recognised as expense in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of
the Group. Short-term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the
absences occur.

Retirement benefits costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.
The Group has no further payment obligations once
these contributions have been paid.

Foreign currency

(M

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss.

3.

BEASTRE#

BERR

(i) "BHEEEA
T8 %2 TANFEENR
RS & B 12 (A8 B AR 75 0 28
MHERBR/MAZ - EHERERH
PRIR (2055 1R) TR IR (R B g 320

(i) RKEF KA
[7) 57 5 fH KR AR AT B4 H A9 R
REBRERBBRERERER
FERFERARAX - AEH
—REANZSHIRBELE—D
NREE -

S s

(i) HERZIES
AEBEERNYHREMHIA
BVRAEBREMETERE
REMNEE((HEE®DFE -
B MERARRRI M EE K 25
ERSTIR -

(i) XBRAEER
SNERHERARZERRITE
RRBREER - ZEXHHE
BUARMIMNESHEZEREER
BERFREXRRZMELNI
EW S REBRIINEBSER -

R EEARAT / 2018F H 82



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. BERXREFHE(£E)
Foreign currency (continued) SNk E)
(iii) Translation reserve (iiiy) ERR®B

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are expressed in Ringgit Malaysia
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that year, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other statement of comprehensive income because of
income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings,
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for manufacturing purposes is
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are reclassified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or l0ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised
SO as to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Business combination (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively,

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, that
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. Following
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Goodwill continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is
allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the
operation within that CGU is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair
values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the
CGU retained.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including receivables, amount owing
from ultimate holding company, amount owing from a
shareholder and cash on hand and at bank) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in
net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables
have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Financial assets (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities including payables
and accrued charges and amount owing to a director
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or 10ss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. EBERXEFHBUR(#E)

Provision BiE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present ERSEARBTSHAEREEE
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, CEEREE) MAEBERAELEAERE
when it is probable that the Group will be required to settle THZER YARETSBIELATE
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can ZAhE - EEmREes

be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate HRAREZEBANBREHRENT
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation ERETMEREZ&EMBT  &F
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the FRESEERBRRTHEESE -
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where EREBEERARTREEMEMF MR
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated TREFME HEEEAZSTHEER
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the E2HME-

present value of those cash flows.

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or HABENEESEBEEMMAIEE
asset that arises from past events and whose existence will SIBMETXAEEEANEE  1tE
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ERHEENFEERTAEBE LT
uncertain future events not only wholly within the control BETEEHMTEERREGNEE
of the Group. ST B A T REE o

Leasehold land and building HELTHREF

When a lease includes both land and building elements, WEHERREE LMW REEFITE K
the Group assesses the classification of each element as SEeRBEEHSTENEREEMMS
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the R K3 D R R ﬂ@#ﬁz% TEEBT
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and REEMENGE 2R ESTRE
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have GHEARMAENKCEHE  HKRIELAM
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both HILTEZRBARKEHE  AIRIEHE
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease BHEAKEMHE - ﬂ%gﬁﬁ% - i KA
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum ERN R (BEE AR 5R) Tz
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) MEN T REFITENBERB R
are allocated between the land and the building elements MEEREMEESAFELN £+
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold HEREF TR ZEDE -

interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably fisg # & 15 53X THREFTEZ
between the land and building elements, the entire lease BEIE f@n E'J%IE HE— %o
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for REBMEME - 1#)\?!%@]2%%% B E
as property, plant and equipment. R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next 12 months.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable
is impaired. To determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the counterparty and default or significant
delay in payments. The management also considers the
creditworthiness, the past collection history of each
customer, ageing analysis and subsequent settlement of
individual balances.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based
on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. The carrying amounts of receivables at
the reporting date are disclosed in Note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. KARZHEH

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the director RERDPE R D HEXRTHE MM

of the Group, being the chief operating decision maker AEEE ELoh Swee Keongst 4 (BN E

(“cCODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and FEEREAN(EERLRERRADE

assessment of segment performance is based on the WMEE R - TR T 5 R R BB B 7% 3R

following reportable and operating segments identified HEAFEIALE  EB B A AT | E K

under IFRS 8 Operating Segments: KD FRE -

(@ Manufacturing and trading — manufacturing and () HWERES -BURRITESS
trading of precast concrete junction boxes; WRERES

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading of by HEEMNBRERSE - BHERE
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane EBESURRHEZES A LEHRE
rental and ancillary services; and EREER®: &

(c) Japanese catering services — provision of Japanese AXRERE — REBRRE -

catering services.

—
O
-~

No operating segments identified by the CODM have been REBMAEENA ®E D EBE - L&
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the EETERERLE AR AZBIBHL
Group. el

Segment revenues and results DEBAREE

For the year ended 31 May 2018 B £2018F5A31BLFE

Other building Japanese

Manufacturing materials and catering

and trading services services
Hitn g2 5

RERES CEYVE AAEE
RM‘000 RM’'000 RM‘000

N A+ P
<A B4 E4=]

Revenue A

External sales AN 2B 85 & ; : 38,194

Inter-segment sales DEEHEE : ; 10,480
Segment revenue o ;WA : b 48,674
Elimination H i (10,480)
Group revenue SEKA 38,194
Segment result DEEE : 8,761
Administrative expenses 17 H B & (7,469)
Selling and distribution ~ $5& R D #EI X

expenses (1,195)
Listing expenses FoR% (2,336)
Finance costs B & pX AR (26)
Other income Hal A 356
Loss before taxation BB AR 18 (1,909)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. BKARSHER 2

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DRBARFEE#)
For the year ended 31 May 2017 B £201755A831BLFE

Other building
Manufacturing materials and
and trading services

H i 32 58
RERES 8 K& BR %
RM'000 RM'000

FoH 4&

Revenue ON

External sales HNER S & 28,604 4,991 33,595

Inter-segment sales 7 EBE & 8,479 1,240 9,719
Segment revenue 7 BB U A 37,083 6,231 43,314
Elimination 1K 35 9,719)
Group revenue SEKA 33,595
Segment result DEEE 10,263 160 10,423
Administrative expenses TR X (3,342)
Selling and distribution HERDHAXZ

expenses (1,331
Listing expenses EHHEX (6,048)
Finance costs A& A A (57)
Other income E A U A 948

Fair value change of financial 1R AFEFAEBZFH
assets at fair value through ERMEENAFE
profit or loss b= 13

Profit before taxation B B B v 606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. BKARZHER 2

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (continuea) DEMAREE(#)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the ﬁ-ﬁ’“‘ﬁﬁ’] 5T SR BB 5E 3T i A9 AN
same as the Group's accounting policies as described in SEEeHBEMER  9HEETERXR
Note 3. Segment results represents the profit from each EETTB(E?J?Z EHHAX - HERDH
segment without allocation of administrative expenses, X REKA A A - AT E
listing expenses, selling and distribution expenses, finance ARG EREENATEEZEDR
costs, other income, fair value change of financial assets MBS MO EN - LRARERD
at fair value through profit or loss and taxation. This is the RERERBEIGHENMRSES TERLSE
measure reported to CODM for the purposes of resource REAREERZE -

allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates DEREEEUNERNMSMERREE T
with discount given for certain bulk purchase. ARERBLETHRNAE -
Segment assets and liabilities THMEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TXREBRARERKEEDHEHHR
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: SEEERBENN:

As at 31 May 2018 720185 5H31H

Other
building Japanese Segment Consolidated
Manufacturing materials and Catering assets assets
and trading services Services (liabilities)  Unallocated (liabilities)

RftREHH PHEE RedE
RERES R i HERE () A2 E (&R)
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At A+ A+ At A+ A+
] E e B F2F e

Non-clrrent assets FRBEE 3,757 405 356 4,518 285 4,803
Current assets nEEE 19,109 9,091 595 28,795 14,309 43,104
Non-current liabilities 3R BEE = = = = (223) (223)
Current liabilities Ak (7,886) (1,294) (197) (9,377) (615) (9,992)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. BKARSHER 2

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continuea) THEEREE#E)
As at 31 May 2017 720174558318
Other building Segment Consolidated
Manufacturing — materials and assets assets
and trading services (liabilities)  Unallocated (liabilities)
Fpe AHEE GRE
RAE )
RM'000 RM'000
TL&E T2&F
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,203 16 3,619 — 3,619
Current assets nYEE 14,013 6,849 20,862 4,151 25,013
Non-current liahilities ERHEE (1) - (411 (147) (558)
Current liabilities nBak (6,031) (621) (6,652) (2939) 9591
All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating segments BETFERETRS  BEELEMHA
other than certain cash on hand and at bank, deferred listing Y HMENARIE - BB RIEERIE
expenses, other payables, current and deferred tax assets BEERABGEIN MEBEEELABEIR
and liabilities. EREDE -
Other segment information Hitny BER
For the year ended 31 May 2018 BI£2018F5A31HLFE

Other building Japanese
Manufacturing materials and catering
and trading services services  Unallocated
Hh %

RERES  HHREH AFRE AR
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ AE A+ A+
XA <A XA XA

Amounts included in the measure of BEEESPEFHER
segment profit or loss or segment A BEEMLE:

assets:
Additions to non-current assets REXNDEE
Factory rental IRHEE
Shop rental EHHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB HRR M

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 May 2017

Manufacturing
and trading

RERES
RM'000

PAN— = A=+

WARZEHER &)
Hitb o BE W (#2)

B ZE20175F5A31MBLLEE

Other building
materials and
Services
Hfh 32 55
% BR 7
RM'000

Amounts included in the BIEETE D 2% F

~X H < A

measure of segment profit or  SXES B D ZEEE
loss or segment assets: &%
Additions to non-current REFRDEE
assets 1,483 — 1,483
Factory rental ITHEE 440 — 440
Geographical information & & R

The Group earns revenue from external customers in two
main geographical areas:

(i) Malaysia — manufacturing and trading;, and other
building material and services

(i) China — Hong Kong — Japanese catering services
Information about the Group’s revenue from external

customers is presented based on the location of the
operations, as follows:

R P
TE-FE

Malaysia
China — Hong Kong

AEEBMEET 2 E B E PRI
WA

() HERAD-RENES: RHEAM
2=EM B R

iy HE-FE-BLAEERE

BERASEREIIFEFPIRANEH
TIREGHWEZIMT

2018
20184

RM’000

A ==
<A

37,952
242 —

38,194

33,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MK |RM

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. BKARSHER 2

(Continued)

Other segment information (continued) Hitn BER (&)

Geographical information (Continuead) & &R ()

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of UWTAEREEMTEMEEI DM D ILE
segment assets, capital addition in respect of property, E mPWE BELREBEEENER
plant and equipment by the geographical areas in which the B

assets are located:

Capital addition property,
Total assets plant and equipment
EE#E M- BERRERE
2018 2017 2018 2017

20184 20174 2018 20174
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000

A =% A== A %= A =L
< A ~X B < B9 < A

Malaysia HRP DR 32,377 24,481 1,172 1,483
China — Hong Kong FE — BE 951 — 359 —

Unallocated KB 14,579 4,157 280 —
47,907 28,632 1,811

Information about major customers FEEFESR

No customer contributes over 10% of total sales of the TEEREARABERPERAE

Group for each of the reporting periods. MBIHE R E10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 6. EEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors ENENARBEENIE (BIER
of the Company (including emoluments for their services as ERR/ARREZAEAEETRES
employees or Directors at the Group prior to becoming the HEENREMS)FBEOT:

directors of the Company) are as follows:

For the year ended 31 May 2018 B Z2018F5A31HLLFE

Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
HITES BYFHTES

Mr. Loh Mr. Tan Mr.

Swee Cheng Mr. Chu Mr. Yau  Alexander

Keong Siong Kin Ming Ka Hei Patrick Lee

Loh Swee Tan Cheng
Keongt %  Siong4 KEHEE HBREEE FHRBRELE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

o == o % o == o % o ==
<A E4=] <A E4=] <A

Directors: %
Other emoluments: Hinih e :
Salaries ik
Contributions to EBERAES
Employees Provident (BEA®S))
Fund ("EPF") (Note) "R )
Total Feay
For the year ended 31 May 2017 B £201755A31BLFE

Mr. Loh Swee Mr. Tan Cheng
Keong Siong Total
Loh Swee Tan Cheng

Keong 4t 4 Siong %t 4 st
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

FoE FoE S

Directors: 5%
Other emoluments: H A & -
Salaries e 192 84 276
Bonuses TE4T — 11 1
Contributions to EPF EERAESHEX
(Note) (K1 at) 35 13 48
Total 485t 227 108 335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Note:

The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly
contributions to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for
all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the
employees’ applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they relate. The contributions
to EPF are disclosed separately and the contributions to EPF are
included in salaries, bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits.
Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further
payment obligations.

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong resigned on 13 June 2018.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Lee, Alexander
Patrick were appointed as Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 27 June 2017.

During both periods, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the Directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
the office.

No Directors’ emoluments were waived during both periods.

The executive directors” emoluments shown were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group and of the Company. The independent
non-executive directors” emoluments were for their services
as directors of the Company.

EEME )
# s -

SROEGTEPERAEBRARIREERTE
ERFEARBEREERAFMNE T
Rk AMAENEEREERMZEER
ERFTOFE - HARBAEBROR S
Be-REATRESHNHRBEHINEE MM
BEABESEHOEKFATE - B4 2
MEHEMEERHM - —BERMER A%
B EE - T HAREML

Tan Cheng Siong %t 4 120184 6 A13H
BHE -

KEPLEE RELERTHEL
A ThR2017F 6 A27 B E & B AR A
BYUIERITES °

R EHEA - AN KB &R AR
EEXNEAME  (ER/MAREHE
SR AN A £R [ B Y HR B SR R B B
fiE -

REERAREAN HEEERENS -

PR RTEFTHE T EREF
RRHEREEEAKRBRARBER
MRBAESHME - BYFATEEZ
ME DR EFER/ARBEFTHMEHR
RBZAEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB HRR M

7. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included
1 and 2 Directors for the year ended 31 May 2017 and
31 May 2018 respectively, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 6. Details of the remuneration for the
remaining 4 and 3 highest paid employees who are neither
a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances e KoERL
Bonuses TE4L
Contributions to EPF BEAESMHER

TEREHHNES
AEELERRFMER D BEE
Z20174 58318 R201845A318 I F
BB K22 EF  ARFHFRHR
RHEEs - R TABR3BREHHESR
(EARRRIEFHNERITRABR)NF
BB

2018
20184

RM’000

P
<8

723 564
- 38
66 66

668

The number of the highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to RM500,000 (equivalent to HK$ nil =& Z=500,000% &
to HK$1,000,000)
1,000,000 7T.)

(HERTETE

UTEIESHFMERFMNFUT
BEDHAR:

During both periods, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid employees of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of the office.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:

Finance leases mEMRE
Trust receipt loan ERREBEER
Bank overdraft RITEX
Term loan FEHER
commitment fees B

T BB BFAX:

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

RREREA - ARELEFAARE R
AREHFMEEXNEMNME  (ER
AN S5 I LS : R4
SIERBERME -

B & A

2018
20184

RM’000

P
<8

27
12
10

57




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BBiA(EE) HER
(Loss)/Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BRBLAT (B518),m AR F0BR  (REA) KA
charging/(crediting): TEIEREN:

2017
20174
RM'000
25
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 7 B 425
Cost of inventories recognised as an R AR IWFEKAK
expense 15,878
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BEIRAE TBEES
remuneration: B -
— Salaries, wages and other — %o IERHM
benefits = A 3,934
— Contributions to EPF —EERAESHER 37N
4,305
Minimum lease payments on: NTEHFENKEHEE
&
Factory T 440
Crane A 122
Shop JE —
Staff accommodation BTFE= 19
Office equipment /N 8
Depreciation of: AT&IBERE:
Property, plant and equipment W BWENREZE 426
Investment property REME 10
Bad debts written off 12 BR 8 18
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE —
Impairment of goodwill (Note 34) 7B ORE (B 734) —
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign FEREREE
exchange (M z=) (15)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BMENEZED
plant and equipment wia () (13)
Realised gain on foreign exchange BEERE R R @)
Interest income F B WA (54)
Allowance for doubtful debts no longer 78 HE R R E &
required -
Rental income from investment KEMENHS WA
property (22)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB HRR M

10. TAXATION 10.

BRAD RGN

Malaysia corporate income tax:

Current year KEE
Underprovision in prior years BEFEEREBETR
Deferred tax (Note 15): BRI (AL 15) -
Current year KEE
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFERERE
(HBEERE)

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory
tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the
assessable year.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/
profit before taxation as follows:

(Loss)/Profit before taxation Br B AT (E18), & 7
Statutory tax rate A TE B &
Taxation at applicable statutory tax rate % iE FE & & R E
]
Tax saving of 6% (Note) B F6% (F7E)
Tax effects of: UTEBENMETE:
Expenses not deductible for TR AL
tax purpose
Income not taxable for tax purpose BARBIA

REMRDEEREZH
BEENTRNEREE

Effect of different tax rate of entities
operating in other jurisdictions

Deferred tax assets not recognised RAERELEREEE
Underprovision of income BAEFEERAAGHH
tax payable in prior years BHETR
Under/(Over)provision of BEFERLER BN EE
deferred tax in prior years TR/ (BEEEE)
Taxation for the year FEMIA
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Bi I8

2018
20184

RM’000

A =%
<A

1,095 1,647
42 27

41 57
3 (16)

44 41
1,715

BROATEEMSHATERHFE
B i 5 B SR B M IR OE E TR KR ETE -

FEMBBEBBA (BR8N Y
BRI

2018
20184
RM’000

Ao
<8

2017
20174
RM'000

A=+
~< B

(1,909) 606
24% 24%
(458) 145

(60) (60)
1,567 1,585
(2) €)

83 35

6 2

42 27

3 (16)
1,715




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

10. TAXATION (continuead) 10. BB &)

Note: Under the Income Tax Act, 1967 of Malaysia, small and Hat: RIBBRAERI1967FMETE - &
medium enterprises in Malaysia with paid-up capital Z£2017F5A318 & 20185831
amounting to RM2,500,000 or less are subject to income WEFE RERADHEEHRRKRAE
tax at the rate of 18% for the year ended 31 May 2017 2,500,000% & sk A T RY /N7 2
and 31 May 2018, on chargeable income amounting to A5 PR R 18% 5k H = 4 500,000
RM500,000 or less. For chargeable income in excess of LEMERRWABNTER -
RM500,000, the corporate income tax rate is 24% for the 2 A B500,000% & A FE 2R B Uk
year ended 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively. A B E2017F5H318 k201845

A3NBLFE  bEMRBHRBEES
Bl 524% °
11. LOSS PER SHARE 1. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the SGRARNBETIRE T EIETE

following data:

2018 2017
2018£ 20174

RM’000 RM’'000

A =+ A
< A Ed=

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per HEEAE B = Y

share: Rl
Loss for the year attributable to the KRB HEBANEBIEFE
owners of the Company E5 18 (1,109)

Number of Number of
shares shares
B4 2B f& 0 & B

Weighted average number of ordinary BRI EEREANEIES
shares for the purpose of calculating & i@ A% hn & 39 &

basic loss per share 536,768,465 384,743,233
In 2017, the weighted average number of ordinary shares MR201745F - ARFTEEREREBENT
for the purpose of calculating basic loss per share has been BEREMEFHOHETIRBRESEEMBRE
determined on the assumption that the Reorganisation and Pt & 78 |2 & b2 1T IR 19 B 722015
the capitalisation on issue of share to the consolidated FOATHERMET °

financial statements has been effective on 1 June 2015.

No diluted loss per share information has been presented & 2= 2017954318 &20184%5A31
for the year ended 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 as there HIEFEHERBEIIMNEL L BER -
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both W EREZMEFE 27 TREEE
years. BRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

12. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of dividend for the year ended 31 May 2017 and

31 May 2018.

13.

Leasehold

land and Plant and
building machinery
HELH BER
kEF BR
RM'000 RM'000

- A+
Ea=] Ea-]

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Motor
vehicles

AE
RM'000

A+
Ea-]

Renovation

6
RM'000

A+
Ea-

12.

13.

=\
ARBEETEBIRNEE2017F5A
310 K&20184F5 4318 (L FE MRS ©

ME - BERRKRE

Office Computer Construction
Factory equipment software

in progress Total
IR BORE
RM'000 RM'000

4% F4E

ek
RM'000

A+
B

ERIR
RM'000

A+
Ea=]

#
RM'000

A+
Ea=]

Cost RA&

At 1 June 2016 #20165F6A1A 365 1,502 1,250 223 258 162 662 19 194 4,635
Additions AE — 775 362 175 62 70 39 — - 1,483
Disposal e - — (13 - - - - - - 3
Reclassification ENAE - 194 - - — — — - (194) —
At 31 May 2017/ 2017458318,/

1 June 2017 2017%F6A18 365 2471 1199 398 320 232 701 19 — 5,705
Additions AE - 547 1,041 Y] 129 - 52 - — 181
Disposal e - - (251) - - - - - - (251)
At 31 May 2018 12018454318 365 3,018 1,989 440 449 232 753 19 = 7,265
Accumulated ZitHE

depreciation
At 1 June 2016 1201656418 103 990 564 104 150 88 357 18 — 2,374
Depreciation for the year  ERH & 7 157 124 34 29 2 52 1 - 426
Disposal HeE — - (313) - - - - — - (313)
At 31 May 2017/ R2074E5ANA/

1 June 2017 017%F6A18 110 1147 375 138 179 110 409 19 - 2,487
Depreciation for the year ~ ER# & 7 206 165 I 39 19 58 - — 535
Disposal e - - (136) — - - - - - (136)
Exchange differences ERES - - (N - - - - - - ()
At 31 May 2018 12018454318 117 1,353 403 179 218 129 467 19 = 2,885
Carrying value EEE
At 31 May 2017 #201745A318 255 1,324 824 260 M 122 292 - — 3218
At 31 May 2018 #2018F5A318 248 1,665 1,586 261 231 103 286 = = 4,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥1% - BERRE (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Renovation 10%
Mould 10%
Factory 10%
Office equipment 10%
Computer software 20%

The following are the carrying values of the assets held
under finance leases included in property, plant and
equipment:

Motor vehicles AE
Plant and machinery iR 55 & 4 A

L% BmELRERERB(EREIR
BROINABE BRIRATFRIFTE -

HMELHREF 2%
B 55 B 1 i 10%
T EHE 10%
B 10%
BA 10%
T 10%
/N 10%
E e 20%

UTRBEREHERANEE (B
AWE BERKER)HNEKREE:

344
433

777

The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with a
carrying value of approximately RM255,000 and RM248,000
as at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively, to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed
in Note 29.

R20174F5 3318 k2018653318 - A&
[ 2 & R AR B 2 5 #)255,000% &
248,000 EHWME L RETFT - ER
AEBEABEEN - RIRTRE KR
(2R B T2 29FF B2 B8 ©

R EEARAT / 2018F H 110



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REWYE
RM'000
AN
< B
Cost )N
At 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 20179 5A31H Kk2018F5H31H 450
Accumulated depreciation ES i
At 1 June 2016 R2016F 6 A1H 39
Charge for the year F AR 10
At 31 May 2017 M201749F5A831H 49
Charge for the year F R 10
At 31 May 2018 R2018F5H31H 59
carrying value REE
At 31 May 2018 M20184%5H31H 391
At 31 May 2017 H2017%5A31H 401
The investment property, comprising of a freehold land and KEYE(BIEHREADEKAERE T H
building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line basis REF)IINERERSOFAERE -
over 50 years.
Rental income earned by the Group from the investment B £2017F5A318 & 20184 5A31H 1+
property which is leased out under operating leases, FE AEBEREMERELE
amounted to approximately RM22,000 and RM2,000 for the HELHHBRBRONBESBADBNOA
year ended 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively. 22,000% & K2,000% & o B 220174
Direct operating expenses incurred in respect of the 5A31H X2018F5A31H IEFE » 3%
investment property amounted to RM887 and RM798 for the BEMEEEMNBEELERAZ DR A887

year ended 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively. SHERTISESE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The fair values of the Group's investment property were
estimated by the directors at RM690,000 and RM690,000
at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively based on
the valuation report on the investment property in prior
year and updated to take into consideration certain recent
transactions involving similar properties in the vicinity. The
fair value is a Level 3 fair value estimation. In estimating the
fair value of the property, the highest and best use of the
property is its current use.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to
the same tax authority. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statements of
financial position:

Deferred tax assets FELERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE

14.

15.

L EBAR DT / 2018F 3K

REWME &)

72017454318 %20184F5A31H + i
EEMEAAKRENRENELTE
81 5690,000% & £690,000% % -
BREEFREMENBERSLEN
FF R B8 B A AR A 3 e 2R B SR Y
RPEH - MERFE=RATERKE -
REAMERXIFER  YEHNKSR
REMAGEREERTRE -

iE %€ B H
WEGZRITHEANAKNMHIAEE
L3 BN A TR TR B B DA R fie IR FE R TR R
F—HB AR MEEHEEE
RABTAHEE ATHEELILRE
HEREE  JTRBBEHRKRK:

(147)

(147)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

15.

16.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At beginning of year RF A

15. IEEBIH (&)

2018
20184

RM’000

A+
< H

147
44 M

Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) BE=mM&K 710
At end of year RER

147

The deferred tax asset/liability mainly represent the tax
effect of (deductible)/taxable temporary differences arising
from property, plant and equipment.

As mentioned in Note 3, deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unabsorbed capital allowances can be utilised.
As of 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018, the estimated
amounts of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax
assets, have been recognised in the financial statements
due to uncertainty of realisation are RM8,000 and RM33,000
respectively.

INVENTORIES

At cost: KA
Raw materials and consumables R B 8 FE &
Finished goods BIPL

BEEREEE BBEIERYE K
FERRENRB (AR, &R
ME R ZEE -

SRR ST A - R RE B T & B A A] A
EX 1S oK 2R FE 3R Bt i 7 DA $K 85 AT 3008
FEfE RABAREEBERRRMNE
REBERRAEAINREREZRE
ABARBEEBRARMNERNRTEE
B 2R o B 22017458318 KX 20184
S5A31H - HREHENTRTEIE - I &
R EREBRECEHNEEENRE
AMIBEEGT £ 55 A8000%9F
33,0004 % °

16. 78

236
415

651
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E B R R M R

17. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT

17. BRRE - BERBAAH

2018
20184

RM’000

P
I8

Trade receivables =) A& 18,724 13,301
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts R R (373) (373)
18,351 18,351

Other receivables E b jE R IE 550 25
Deposits b4 595 278
Prepayments JEENE 324 92
Advance to suppliers RETHERORAK 77 —
Deferred listing expenses EE LAY — 2,353
15,873

The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group

ranges from 30 to 120 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the

invoice date.

1-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-120 days

More than 120 days

1230H
31£60H
61%290H
912120H
1208 +

R EZRKEBEBERMATEE  MAK
B P T = E# ) F30=120A -

UTAREBEERARNZINNE SRR
FRIBORR R BB Rl DT -

2018
20184
RM’000

A =%
< A

5,787 3112
4,298 4,108
3,309 2,747
1,812 961
3,145 2197
18,351 13,125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB HRR M

17. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT
(Continued)
As of 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018, trade receivables of
RM3,409,000 and RM10,013,000 respectively, were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history of default
and have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as these balances were either subsequently
settled or there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered recoverable.

The following is an ageing of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired based on invoice date.

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61£290H
91-120 days 91%120H
More than 120 days 1208 KA +

17. BWFHE RERASRE)

#H =20179F58318 X201845H318 -
7 5 53,409,000 & 10,013,000 &
MESEWREBEBEBBERBE B
BRIEIREZETRANER %5
Pl EIBENLE  WEAREBE
BRUMNAELS - BREBELES
AR EERADARZELEHRIED
BERE BAZZTHEBSERBIRLE
ERIHEEEZWESENEE Mz
SHEBNBAR BRI AN E o

UTAREZEZBHCBHERRE
W8 5 R IR R AR ik -

2018
20184

2017
20174
RM'000

A==
~< B

RM’000

T4

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts:

At beginning of year RF A

Impairment losses made during the year 4 A2 /E R (E & 18

3,526 1,204

2,467 685

1,202 272

2,818 1,248

10,013 3,409
REFEEDWT -

2018
20185
RM’000

A ==
<A

176
200 —
@3) -

Impairment losses no longer required 78 B &R {E k18
At end of year RER

373 176

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are four and
fourteen individually impaired trade receivable with balance
of approximately RM176,000 and 373,000 as at 31 May 2017
and 31 May 2018 respectively, which has been placed in
severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over this balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

18.

19.

AMOUNTS OWING FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY AND A SHAREHOLDER AND
AMOUNT OWING TO A DIRECTOR

The amount owing from ultimate holding company is non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The amount owing from a shareholder is non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The amount owing to a director, Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is
non-trade nature, unguaranteed, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The amount owing to a director
of RM570,000 in 2017 represented the unpaid balance of
the acquisition of the subsidiary companies and has fully
settled on 17 July 2017. The amount owing to a director of
RM12,000 in 2018 represents expenses paid of behalf.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS PLEDGED
WITH BANKS

Short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less carry interest at prevailing market rate of
3.15% and ranging from 2.95% to 3.20% per annum as at
31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively. The short-
term bank deposits are pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 29.

18. ERSERERATARKRRRIEA
RENESHRE

e SRR ARFIARFESMEE -
BEM RERBRERERE -

EMBCR AR EE S IHE - E|EA
RERBBEREE -

JE T E ZFE Loh Swee Keong 4t 4 18 A&
FEFHME BER BEF L8
NBRBEREE - R20176F © ENES
FRIES570,000 FH BB WENE
NAM AR &R - BB R2017467H17
HESES - R2018%F - [ENESHKIE
120002 EM S BRERABINHASL -

19. EBFRITHEBRTERK

R2017F5A318 K%20185E5831H & &
THHBEAE=M@ASKUTHREBART
TR Th iz A% F F R 5 53.15% &
NF2.95%E3.20%:T 8. o FHIRITIF R
EERERRTAEEMN —KRRITE
B/ (LA BT 2 29FT K FR) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

20. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 20. ENREREGFER

2018
20184

RM’000

A+
< H

Trade payables B SR HRIE 8,143

Accrued charges EETE A 993 496
Other payables H fth A 3R 712 600
Advance from customers BEPEFR 78 119
Customers’ deposits EPZ® —
Accrued listing fees FEErEmER 2,053
Tenants' deposit HEZRS 4

8,450
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables EORNFRERZZAH 2| MERER
presented based on the invoice dates: DT

1-30 days 1£230H 2,270
31-60 days 31E60H 1,225
61-90 days 61290H 1,341
91-120 days 912120H 207
Over 120 days 1208 A E 135

5,178
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

20. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

21.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to
75 days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

Tenants’ deposit in 2017 represent the refundable deposits
to tenants upon termination or cancellation of operating
lease arrangements. The tenant deposits are refundable to
tenants within 60 days upon the termination of the tenancy
agreement. This tenants’ deposits amounted to RM4,000 as
at 31 May 2017 has been refunded during the financial year
ended 31 May 2018.

FINANCE LEASES

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

mEaE
FRBEE

LB ERMOTMT

0. ENREREFERE)

BENTHEEHRRIETSH - AEE
RA WA R E R BRR AR B &
NHRBEHEEERARRNES -

017FWMEPReRERKEERER
PR IFSBUER AR ERPMNIES o
AEZeINEERZRIEEZOBRA
REME - R2017F5A3B B %
©4,0002 F EREE2018F5A318 IE
HHRFEARE -

MEMEE

172
411

583

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles,
plant and machinery. The Directors determined the leases
to be finance leases as the ownership of the relevant assets
will be transferred to the Group upon the payment of the
last instalment of the individual agreement. The average
lease term was 5 years as at 31 May 2017. Interest rates
underlying all obligations under finance leases were fixed at
respective contract dates ranging from 4.70% to 7.10% per
annum for the year ended 31 May 2017.

AEBHNBREELAESETES K
EREMIA R NRE EFHTEZ
SHELMEARE AAHEBEEN
FTBEESRERRE&E SRR
g T AEB® - R20176F58318 © F
HIEEBRSF - B E 2017543181
FE BMEMETHMBEETNHEEA
MEDRSHEBEEHBEHET N TF
FEA70%ZE710% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

21. FINANCE LEASES (continuea) 21. mEMEE®)

2018
20184

RM’000

A+
< H

Total outstanding: RZfT#gE:

Not later than one year TR —F 201
Later than one year and not later than  #B@—FET BB AF
five years 440
641
Less: Finance charges BB ER (58)
Principal outstanding RARENAE® 583
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : 1288 A2 EEE
12 months (Shown under 7 FE (B AR
current liabilities) BEET) (172)
Amount due for settlement after RIR2EA B BEERN
12 months KIE 411
Finance leases were denominated in RM. Certain finance BMEBEDUNSHAE BTHER
leases were guaranteed by Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director EMHRE=Loh Swee Keongit KLoh
and Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong. The Swee Keong %t A& #I M #kLoh Lily 2z £ #&
guarantee has been released upon the full repayment made R BRAERNEE2018F5A31H 1E
during the financial year ended 31 May 2018. HMREEABRYSINREREERRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

22. A&
M2017F5A3THM R AEARANE
BT - IBIFEA - ARAIR20164F
MANMBK AB AR AEEN QR
PRRATE e

22. SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital as at 31 May 2017 represented the
issued share capital of the Company. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on
11 November 2016.

Number of
shares Share capital
&y 4= [N
‘000 HK$'000 RM'000
T i& T 5
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R EEC.01E T
each L m A
Authorised: EE:
At date of incorporation/ REEfpk s B
31 May 2017 (note a) 2017 5H31H
(Htita) 38,000 380
Increase of authorised share 3 hns%k iF B AR
capital (note ¢) (#1atc) 9,962,000 99,620
At 31 May 2018 MR2018F5H31H 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At date of incorporation Rk sz B H
(note a) (%t ita) — — -
Issue of shares on EHRETRMN
Reorganisation (note b) (H1aEDb) 10 — —
At 31 May 2017/1 June 2017 #A2017458318
20176311 10 — —
Issue of share by capitalisation 38 &AN{LEITALD
(note d) (' ita) 439,990 4,400 2,400
Issue of new shares by way B S & A5
of placement and public BT NBITHRMD
offering (note d) (' ita) 180,000 1,800 982
At 31 May 2018 2018454318 620,000 6,200 3,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

22. SHA

Notes:.

@

RE CAPITAL (continued)

On 28 October 2016, the Company was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands
with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 comprising
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and paid up
share capital of HK$0.01 comprising 1 ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each.

On 11 November 2016, Merchant World and Greater Elite
transferred 1,000 and 388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire
to the Company respectively, and in consideration thereof,
the Company allotted and issued as fully paid an additional
7,204 ordinary shares to Merchant World and 2,795 ordinary
shares to Greater Elite. After the said transfers, Gallant
Empire became a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the
Company.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
authorised share capital was increased from HKD380,000
comprising 38,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01 each
to HKD100,000,000 comprising 10,000,000,000 shares of par
value of HKDO0.01 each, by way of creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01 each.

On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company, conditional
upon the crediting of the Company’s share premium account
as a result of the issue of the public offer shares and the
placing shares for the proposed initial listing of shares of
the Company on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the directors of the Company were authorised
to capitalise an amount of HKD4,399,000 standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum towards the paying up in full at par a
total of 439,990,000 shares for allotment and issue to the
shareholders as of 27 June 2017 (“Capitalisation”).

On 19 July 2017, the Company has successfully listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and made
an offering of 162,000,000 new shares by way of placement
and 18,000,000 new shares by public offering priced at
HKDO0.28 per share (“Placement and public offering”). On the
same date, the Company has completed the capitalisation
issue to the shareholders after the successful listing on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

22. A (#)

@

20165108288 AR & R £
HeamrukadfMrEHEA
& v & E B AN 5380,0000 T (B &
38,000,000% & & E {E0.017% T /) &
B &8 R ZAR0.017%E T (B 518
FREECOE LML EAR) -

®2016%11 8118 + Merchant World
KGreater Elite 5l #1,000 4% X 388 i%
Gallant Empirem) @ EE T AR
Al MIEABRANRE  KNARINHRE
IR R A = B 8% R B 1T FE S0, 204 0%
3 A% ¥ Merchant World }.2,795/% & 3@
% F Greater Elite » ) bl &% 1%
Gallant Empire i /& 7 2 71 89 2 &
BAF -

1B & A 2 A B R R2017F6F27H
BBEMNETDRFZER BHEZHEIN
9,962,000,000 0% & % E E0.017% 7T 4
B 15 - 5% T B& AR $1380,0007% T (8
#£38,000,0008% & A% ™ 1E0.0178 T
#) B% 19) # Z100,000,0007% 7T (£ 4%
10,000,000,0000% & P& @ 60.017% 7T
BB A) o

AR BREAQFKRRBBNESER
HE FEARRNBROEEERRAR
BBEARRIBNEAREEHRAR
SFARARGEM EH#ITARRE
B REERMDMEBEBERE &
BARBEEBARAR RN HERN
PR £ %84,399,00078 TETEAR  F
EAENAEHcEREE2HEAR
439,990,0000% A 3 & 217 T &, £2017
FOA27TAMBRMIRG ([EAE]) ©

R2017E7H198 - AR R 2 K IR
ERBERXSMARARGEM LT
It LA BE B = 18 2 % 5162,000,000
i RARHEERARSE
518,000,000 T {7 - BERE
Br0.28 T (AL ERAFEE]D - A
B RARBRKDET BB ER5H
B IR AR GEM L 1& 7e A A1 ISR E AT
EARLET -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22. BA (&)
Notes: (Continued) Mt (&)
d  (Continued) (d) (%)
This has resulted in the issued and paid-up share capital LR B BB BT R AR IRABH100%8
increased from HKD100 comprising 10,000 shares at par 7 (£23%10,00088 & IR EE0.018 T HY
value of HKDO0.01 each to HD6,200,000 (equivalent to B% 17) 3% 26,200,000 T (18 & K 4
approximately RM3,382,000) comprising 620,000,000 shares 3,382,000% & )(£245620,000,000 % &F
at par value of HKDO0.01 each. f% E{E0.017%8 ST B AR 15) ©
All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu FIBERFRETHERREZERER
with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects. WEBRESTEZERFHA -
Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the BEARDF R ER2017F6A270B B
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the MEBEAZR  ARBIEEEGERA—
Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme. THERETSE - RABREEE - HE
No option was granted as at the date of this report. B AT B AR R o
23. SHARE PREMIUM 23. B =E

Issue of new shares by way of BRARERAHEBE
placement and public offering FRETHRSD
(Note 22(d) (Kt &£22(a)) —
Less: Capitalisation (Note 22(d) BB ANME (B i322() —
Transaction cost attributable to BITHRELORS
issue of new shares P 7R —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

24. OTHER RESERVE

25.

The other reserve at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018
represented the aggregate amount of the fully paid
registered or paid-in capital of Target Precast, Target S&M,
Target C&L, Gallant Empire, SK Target Holdings and Loyal
Earn. As at 31 May 2017, the amount represented the
capital contribution from a pre-IPO investor. Pursuant to
a subscription agreement, the pre-IPO investor agreed to
subscribe for, and Gallant Empire agreed to allot and issue
388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire, which represented
2795% equity interest in Gallant Empire, to the pre-IPO
investor for a total subscription price of HK$15,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RM8,579,000).

In 2017, as part of the Reorganisation, Mr. Loh transferred
his equity interest in Target Precast, Target S&M and
Target C&L to SK Target Holdings for a total consideration
of RM570,000. After the transfer, Target Precast, Target
S&M and Target C&L became wholly-owned subsidiary
companies of SK Target Holdings.

TRANSLATION RESERVE

The translation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group’s
presentation currency.
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24. Hibfk s

R2017F5A318 K2018F5A31H M H
& & F5 Target Precast - Target S&M -
Target C&L - Gallant Empire - SK Target
Holdings & Loyal Earn®) 4 @ s sk &
W& R4 EE o R2017F5831H - BE
CHEREALAHABENKEANT
B RERBEHE  BRAHBENKR
& % [F B R B MGallant Empire[d & 6]
BN ERIRE B R ¥ RE1T388
% Gallant Empire & i 3% (48 & 7 Gallant
Empire #27.95% iZ #) - LR B E A
15,000,0007% 7T (A8 & 7 498,579,000%

&) e

20174 - EREHEK —F 5 - Loh
oA H A Target Precast « Target S&M
KTarget C&LHY[X #4345 T SK Target
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

26.

27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
balance. Equity balance consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends as well as the issue of new debt and
repayment of debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) cCategories of financial instruments

Financial assets ERMEE

Loans and receivables (including ERRERFIBE(BEE

26.

27.

EXRERERE
AEBEREEANERAEERE

BAURKELE YEBEBLEBRK
BHEBELNDBARESTREANDRE -
FA AEEEBREBRTTE -

AEENEARBEAREME - /1T
R R ERBAEK - RERBEER
ARBEEANEIERE  BEBRAR
RE R A

AEEEEE—BHERFEREARE -
EREBELN B0 AEEEEES
BEAKAREBENERAR - R
BAKEEEENEZR  AKEKAE
BIRNEEARBETHEEREEE
BPHEBBERRE -

EMITHA
@ &MIAEHR

cash on hand and at bank) FHERIETES) 41,261 21,751
Financial liabilities cHmas
Amortised cost PN 9,020

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to

mitigate these risks are set out below.

L EBAR DT / 2018F 3K

MEEREEEEREE

(b)

FEENISLWTARRES
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0 6T 1 22 %5 L B ) B 5 L7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. T@TAR#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIXEREEEERBE
and policies (continued) (%)
Market risk 3% & k&
Interest rate risk ViEY:N

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the Group’s bank balances.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow interest rate
risk as a result of changes in market interest rates
and will consider hedging changes in market interest
rates should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances
as the management of the Company considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank are minimal and
the impact from the exposure to interest rate risk
sensitivity is considered insignificant

Currency risk

The Group has certain bank balances denominated in
HKD other that the functional currency of respective
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €T R#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEREEEERBEK
and policies (continued) (&)
currency risk (Continued) E¥ERE)

If the currency of the respective cash and bank
balances had been 5% higher/lower, the post-tax
profit of the Group for the year will increase/decrease

by:

HKD

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily due
to the collectability risk of the trade receivables. The
length of the credit period granted by the Group
will depend on the customers’ scale of operation,
reputation and credibility. The Group performs on-
going credit evaluation on the financial condition
of trade debtors and tightly monitors the overdue
debts. The Group will take the necessary follow up
action in case of long outstanding debts or when the
above credit evaluation results draw the attention of
management. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of the trade receivables
individually and collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts as set out in Note 4. The
credit policies have been followed by the Group and
are considered to be effective in limiting the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk.

L EBAR DT / 2018F 3K
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1B/ B2 (E5% - RIS F R
Bii& 5 M A3 0, B D -

The Group
rEHE
2018
20184

RM’000

A+
< a

742

FERR
AEBPENEERBREEEMR
A 5 & WK IR B RT UK = L Bk A
B AKEAETEEHNHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

27. ¢RI A#E)
(b) HHEABEEARERBE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties arises from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk with its exposure spread over a large number of
customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good credit
ratings and the Group has limited exposure to any
single financial institution.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for the financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €T R#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives () MERKREEEERBREK
and policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESERE)
The table includes both interest and principal cash EHPEENERASRERE °
flows, to the extent that interest flows are floating i A& A F e R = - BIRAIR S

rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest

BEBEHROMN R iRTHE -

rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average
effective On demand Total Total
interest or less than

Over 2 undiscounted
years  cash flows
RERRE
nREAE BREE
RM'000 RM'000

A+ A=x
4= 4=

carrying
rate 12 months amount

MELHE RERH12
BHE  @AUT 264k
RM'000 RM'000

(y A+ A%
0 XA Ea=]

As at 31 May 2017 R2017%5A831A

Payables and accrued charges ERRERETER - 8,450 — — 8,450 8,450

Amount owing to a director ERNESHE - 570 — — 570 570

Finance leases BERE 470-710 201 201 239 641 583
9221 201 239 9,661 9,603

As at 31 May 2018 ®2018%5831H

Payables and accrued charges ENFERENER

Amount owing to a director ENESHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €T R#®)

(c) Fair value of the Group's financial () *EENEHEERESH
assets and financial liabilities EENATE
The directors consider that the carrying amounts EFERAE  REEVBMRILHE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded HAAABENEtMemEERE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial themAaENRREEENTE
statement approximate their fair values. Fair values BE EMmemEEREMSR
of the financial assets and financial liabilities have AEMNAFTEERELAREEE
been determined in accordance with generally NIZHBREeRESITEE ' B
accepted pricing models based on a discounted SEEZHAEBEARMEFHE
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs EE R AR E o
being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 28. METBHELENEBYHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details the reconciliation of opening and TERHBIIRGEEERERE KBS
closing amounts in the consolidated statement of financial ErRmATdnNBRenesEAER
position for each liability for which cash flows have HREVBRRAR ZBVIRARS Y
been or would be, classified as financing activities in the BREEIE

consolidated statement of cash flows:

As at Cash Flows As at
1.6.2017 RERE 31.5.2018
720174 Drawdown Repayment 120184

6A1H8 12 HY BEE 5831H
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

A== A= A= A =%
< A < A ~X B < A

Current liability: mEBE -
Finance lease mEMAE 21 172 —

Non-current liability:  3ERBEE :
Finance lease mEHE 21 411 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBwRMEE

29.

30.

BANK FACILITIES

A subsidiary company of the Group has banking facilities
amounting to RM1,300,000 and RM5,750,000 as at 31 May
2017 and 31 May 2018 respectively.

These facilities are secured by:

() leasehold land and building with a carrying amount
of RM255,000 and RM248,000 as at 31 May 2017 and
31 May 2018 respectively,

(i)  fixed deposits amounting to RM1,059,000 and
RM401,000 as at 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018
respectively; and

(i)  corporate guarantee by the Company amounting to
RMS5,750,000 as at 31 May 2018.

There are utilisation of banking facilities amounted to
RM534,000 and RM534,000 as of 31 May 2017 and 31 May
2018 respectively.

LEASE COMMITMENT

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect
of factory, shop, staff accommodation and office equipment
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FRA

In the second to third years inclusive

M)

29.

30.

F_E=F(BHERE

L EBAR DT / 2018F 3K

RITEME

7N & B H) — [ B 8 2 B 702017 4F5 3 31
B %201845A31H W IRITRAE 7 Bl &
1,300,000% & K5,750,0009 & ©

Sy 2 R i LT & T8 A

() F20174%58318 &2018FE5A31H
B8R M B o B A255000% & K
2480002 EMHEE L i MEF

iy  H2017FE5H318 K2018%5A31H
2 Bl £1,059,000% & &401,000%
HFEHNTEHER &

(i) PA2018%F5H318 AR 1 A 12 # 19
5,750,000% & A Al & 1R °

H £2017F 58318 &2018%5A318 -
ERMIRTTRLE © B A534,0008 F
534,000 %

HE IR

AEEEREEA
RIREIR - AR BARET 7 HUE 0
CEHEARTIHR  EH BIEER
R R R R R (R AR B R R
T 5 B o U 8

30
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30. LEASE COMMITMENT (continued) 30. HEXAE®E)
The Group as lessor AEEERBEHBEA
The property held by the Group has committed tenants and AEEMBYEESFEREEND
lease rentals are negotiated annually. EmEPRHEEHES -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RIEBR  AEECR—FZHEPHT
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease PR AR B (K FE A & SRIB ET 4V ¢
receivables:

Within one year

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 31. EREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIEBR  REBBUAT S RIKED
following capital commitments in respect of the acquisition ¥ BEMERENERALE:

of property, plant and equipment:

2018
20184
RM’000

A =%
< A

Contracted but not provided for BEIHEREE

32. NON CASH TRANSACTION 32. k¥BREXRS
Addition of property, plant and equipment of RM729,000 REZE2017F5ANBLEFERE A
during the year ended 31 May 2017 was financed by new 729000 EMME BEMZEHRH
finance lease agreements. BEMHEHZRTEES -
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mE MK |RM

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 33. RWEBARKNELS
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect FR - ARFTRTIMBAREBEEE
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary REERRE AR :
companies:

Equity attributable to the Group

AEBELRE
Issued and As at As at
Place of fully paid-up 31 May 31 May
Name of Company incorporation share capital 2017 2018  Principal activities
BERTRBE MN2017F K2018%F
AR AR oF AR 37 3t Bk A& 5A31H 5H31B EEHK
Target Precast Industries Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia RM500,000 100% (Wl Manufacturing and trading of
BSRAD 500,000 % precast concrete junction
boxes

HELREERARERLIERE

Target Sales & Marketing Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia RM70,002 100% (Wl Trading of precast concrete
SRAD 700024 % junction boxes and
accessories and pipes
BERRRRTEREREMN

RE#
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn. Bnd.  Malaysia RM100 100% (11 Provision of mobile crane rental
SRAD 1009 % and ancillary services
RUEBHAREREEREE
FR 7%
Gallant Empire Limited*! British Virgins US$1,000 100% (00 Investment holding
Island 1,000% T REAER
EERAES
SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd.? Malaysia RM100 100% (00 Investment holding
SRAEDR 1002 % REZR
Loyal Earn Limited? Hong Kong HK$1 100% (0 Payment centre
HE 1B SN
Target Foundry Sdn Bhd* Malaysia RM100 100% ~— Inactive
SRED 1002% Tmex
Extra Mega Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 100% ~ Provision of Japanese catering
N 18T services
RUEBERS
* Directly held by the Company * BHARRIEERE
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 33. ARBRARIMER &)
(Continued)
Notes: Bi it -

M

Gallant Empire Limited (“GEL") was incorporated in the
BVI with limited liability on 5 June 2016. As at the date of
incorporation, GEL was authorised to issue a maximum of
50,000 shares of USD1 each. On 21 July 2016, 1,000 shares
(representing the entire issued share capital of GEL) were
allotted and issued as fully paid to Merchant World. As part
of the Pre-IPO Investment as described in Note 22, GEL
allotted and issued as fully paid 388 shares to Greater Elite
Limited (“Greater Elite").

On 11 November 2016, as part of the Reorganisation, each of
Merchant World and Greater Elite transferred its respective
entire shareholding interests in GEL to the Company, in
consideration of Company allotting and issuing as fully
paid an additional 7,204 ordinary shares to Merchant World
and 2,795 ordinary shares to Greater Elite. After the said
transfers, GEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary company
of the Company.

SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“SKTH") was incorporated in
Malaysia on 24 August 2016 with an authorised capital of
RM400,000 divided into 400,000 shares of RM1 each, and
99 shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Loh Swee Keong
(“Mr. Loh") and one (1) share was allotted and issued to
Mr. Ng Thuan Leong (“Mr. Ng"), both for cash at par value.
Pursuant to a declaration of trust executed by Mr. Ng on
14 December 2016, Mr. Ng confirmed, inter alia, that the
one (1) share held by him was held on trust for Mr. Loh
with effect from 24 August 2016 and he dealt with the said
one (1) share in such manner as Mr. Loh from time to time
directed and voted at the shareholders’ meeting and board
of directors’ meeting as Mr. Loh from time to time directed.
On 6 October 2016, GEL acquired 99 shares of SKTH from
Mr. Loh at the consideration of RM99 and acquired one (1)
share of SKTH from Mr. Ng at the consideration of RM1. After
the said transfers, SKTH became a wholly-owned subsidiary
company of GEL.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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Gallant Empire Limited ([GEL]) ®
2016 F6ASE T R B R & Bt B 7E i
AL ABRAR - R AR -
GELJE % # %% 77 &% % 50,000 % & B M
BTG - R2016567H218 -
1,0000% A% 7 (48 & 74 GEL A & &F 2 8
TTREAS) LA SR IR 3k A\ Bl 88 e B 1T
F Merchant World » £ & 0 it 5222
FTilmE X AAEERREN—I
5 GELUA 8 B 3k = i 8 I 8
773880% J& 17 F Greater Elite Limited
([Greater Elite]) -

R2016F1MANE - tEREHN — 3
%> Merchant World & Greater Elite
EEMHERGELA 2 BAREE FE TR
NE ERZARQ T SR I’ FK
AL REITREIN 204 EBR T
Merchant World }.2,7950% & i@ iz T
Greater Elite X fE o Lt -
CELKAARRTIMEEMB AT -

SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
([SKTHJ) 72016 F 8 A24H £ R
DAk S 7 E & A R400,000%
& 5 A400,0000% &R EE1S FH
ffn - WITIREE AG9IM AR 15 B 8% I
%77 F Loh Swee Keong st 4 ([Loh %
£ R—(1) RGBS EREITTNG
Thuan Leong %t 4 (Ng % 4 1) LA #2 B
We - RIENgEAEN20165F12 7148
FUMETEE  NgEERR(ESP
BIE)EH2016F8A24HRIFEH —
(1) BB T LAE 7875 2 A Loh %t & 5
B AR EMNLOhE EREIERN T
NEEZ— () RRG - Wiklohske &
TRMNETABRRASREZSEE
I - B2016F10H68 © GELIAK
{B99% 5 i Loh 5t A UK B SKTHH) 99 %
R - WIARE1SEF HNg L LU E
SKTHEY — (1) Bz fn - L& -
SKTHAX AGELM 2 EWEB AR ©
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 33. ARMB AR MER &)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

33.

Byt (42)

(©)

Loyal Earn Limited ("LEL") was incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability on 1 June 2016. On the date of
incorporation, LEL allotted and issued as fully paid one (1)
share (representing the entire issued share capital of LEL) to
the initial subscriber, which was then transferred to GEL at
the consideration of HKD1 on 28 July 2016.

(©)]

Loyal Earn Limited ([LEL]) 420164 6
R1BEEBHEMA L AERAF -
MM BE - LELIA B B IR 0 %
HBC 2 R BT — (R AR (I8 R LEL
WEIEEITRE) FTVIHFREA
HER2016E7A28A KRB IS TE
% T GEL >

(4) On 1 September 2017, the Group acquired the entire (4  HR2017F9A1R - AEEB B ARAEE
issued share capital of Target Foundry Sdn Bhd (“Target = Loh Swee Keong st & & H Bk Loh
Foundry”), a dormant company incorporated in Malaysia, Lily Z += Uk B Target Foundry Sdn Bhd
for a cash consideration of RM100 from Mr. Loh Swee Keong, ([Target Foundryl) & 3 2 2 17 %
a director of the Company and his sibling, Ms. Loh Lily. This K ZAT A BN ERA G
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition YHTNERAR  BeEREAI00S
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the o ZIESHE I HEAREEAR -
acquisition was RM10,338 (Note 34). I B = IE T E A RIS 2 £ %8 510,338

< (KT FE34)

(5)  Extra Mega Limited (“EML") was incorporated in Hong (5)  Extra Mega Limited ([EMLJ) #2018

Kong with limited liability on 4 April 2018. On the date of
incorporation, EML allotted and issued as fully paid one (1)
share (representing the entire share capital of EML) to the
initial subscriber, which was then transferred to GEL at the
consideration of HKD1 on 26 April 2018. EML is engaged in
the provision of Japanese catering services in China — Hong
Kong.

None of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.

FLRARE B AAMKRILABRA
Ao REMASBE - EMLIA SR IR
REALBERET-—(VRERS GEE
REMLE) 2 ERA) T REA - H
% TA2018F 4 A26 8 AR B8 T2
FGEL EMLAH B E B L EHAE
EE o

BENBRRANHERNRETEME
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e BB HRR M

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
On 1 September 2017, Target Precast acquired Target
Foundry for a consideration of RM100.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as
follows:

Bank balances RITH 84

34. WEKEQE
M20179981H - Target Precast U B
Target Foundry + B A100%2F o

WRELTEERBBNT:

2018
2018

RM

A =%
< A

100

Payables and accrued charges FERRIAE R EET X (10,338)
Net identifiable liabilities A#EREARE (10,238)
Fair value of net identifiable liabilities AHENFAENRATE (10,238)
Goodwill EES 10,338
Fair value of purchase consideration WEREN R TE 100
The cash outflow on acquisition is as follow: WHEHMR L RLMT

Purchase consideration satisfied by cash MRS MM ERE

Cash and cash equivalent of subsidiary
company acquired

EUBHBEARNRENECEEY

Net cash outflow of the Group

AEENHR SR

FER

In view of the dormant status of Target Foundry since

its date of incorporation, the directors of the Company

concluded that the goodwill arising from the acquisition
should be impaired in full (Note 9).

@ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2018
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35.

36.

37.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group has provided
a performance guarantee in respect of a project signed
with Telekom Malaysia Berhad, a customer, amounting to
RM534,000 for securing a project. This guarantee will be
discharged upon the completion of the project.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(@ Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in
Note 18.

(b) The remuneration paid or payable to the key
management personnel, being the directors of the
Company, during the year is included in Note 6.
The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individuals and market trends.

(c)  Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director of the Company and
Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong, have
provided financial guarantees to certain subsidiary
companies of the Group as disclosed in Note 21 as at
31 May 2017.

(d)  Acquisition of the entire interest in Target Foundry
Sdn. Bhd. from Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a director of the
Company and Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee
Keong as disclosed in Note 33.

LITIGATION

On 26 October 2017, a subsidiary company of the Group has
filed a writ and statement of claim in Kuala Lumpur High
Court to premise the invalidation of the registered patent
of precast concrete junction box cover purportedly held by
the former supplier.

On 8 June 2018, the suit was withdrawn upon a settlement
agreement entered into by both parties on 7 June 2018 that
the former supplier shall pay a total of RM80,000 to the
subsidiary company.

35.

36.

37.

HREBAERAT / 2018F ik

& X & &

RBERAR AEBERE—BEP
Telekom Malaysia Berhad# E#)HEH 12
HEAER - £ A534,0009F * N
EREBELD ZERBNREETK
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BEBLXZ
@ EERBTMERREE MBI
& KM EE184K B -

) FREFNHIENEZZEZREAER
RRBEE) N BN 6 -
TBREEABNHFMO2EMEA
REMTMZBEERE -

(€ I FE21ATHEE - R20174F58
318 - Loh Swee KeongsE 4 (A
AEZ) MLoh Lilyz =+ (Loh Swee
Keongfc £ WM IR E A A K B A
FHBRARREMBEER -

d) FINHIEE33FTHE EE - BLoh Swee
Keong 5t &£ (&R A & # =) K Loh
Lily%z 4+ (Loh Swee Keong?st 4
) B 2k ) Uk B8 Target Foundry Sdn.
Bhd.Hy & 36 # %5 o

B

R2017510A268 - RNEB —EHBA
AEmMEREeESERER—MHER
HERMRFE BEABEHEHAIRER
HAENBEERIEREENTEHRE
F &y o

R2018F 6 A8H - &5 1KR2018F687H
RN ML EPRIHEREAER
BB AR HA80,0008F @ i
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ZA7A R HY B # AR R &

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RABRBERROTHRRNENE
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: e :
2017
20174
RM'000
5
Non-Current Asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary company REBARIMEE 4
Current Assets REEE
Receivables, deposits and prepayment JEUREIE 24 R FEN R 93 2,353
Amount owing from subsidiary FE W BT A RSB
companies (Note a) (Kiita) 17,935 57
Cash on hand and at bank FHELETES 592 48
Total Current Assets REBEEHAE 18,620 2,458
Current Liabilities REBEE
Payable and accrued charges ERRERESER 2,153
Amount owing to subsidiary companies & {<f Bt & A 7] ZUE
(Note &) (Ki7ta) 6,224
Total Current Liabilities REBAELE 8,377
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) FRBEE (BF) (5.919)
Net Assets/(Liabilities) BEE(8F) (5915)
Capital and Reserves BEXREE
Share capital & 7 3,382 —
Share premium &% 15 3% & 19,891 —
Accumulated loss (Note b) 2t BB (M atb) (11,217) (5,915)
Total Equity ERBEE 12,056 (5,915)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. XA ARIWE HEMRRERE)
COMPANY (continued)
The movements of accumulated loss is as follows: BitEBENgEsnT

At beginning of year/date of REWDZEMKLBH

incorporation (5,915) —
Loss and total comprehensive loss F/HAEER
for the year/period FHEIERE (5,302) (5,915)
At end of year/period RE/BR (11,217) (5.915)
Notes: B &
(@  The amounts owing from/(to) subsidiary companies are @ R (FEA) BT B R R R IE B IR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. W RERBERBREE-
(b)  The loss for the reporting period 28 October 2016 (date of (b))  BE2016F108288 (GEf AL H 8 &=
incorporation) to 31 May 2017 and period ended 31 May 20174 5A 310 ) & 81 | & 8 £2018
2018 from mainly comprise the listing fees of RM6,048,000 F5R3NA I BFEMEIE 268 1E 5
and RM2,336,000 during the period respectively. A E™E B R 560480005 F
2,336,000 F °
The financial position of the Company was approved and RATH MR R RBESER2018
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 August FRA2ABHL AW KAETIZE - W H T
2018 and are signed on behalf by: BEERERESE:
Loh Swee Keong Chu Kin Ming
KEH
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
EZE BUIHNTESE
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FOUR YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o & B 35 8 =

RESULTS

S

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit before taxation
(Loss)/Profit for the year

Year ended 31 May
BZ5A31ALLEE
2018 2017 2016
20184 20174 20164
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

P - A== A==
< A =] =]

PN 38,194 33,595 33,281
£ 8,761 10,423 9,929
B 78 A a1 (1,909) 606 6,566
FR(EIE), 5 F (3,090) (1,109) 4,895

23,165
7,478
5,107
3,846

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERARE

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Total equity

As at 31 May
MR5H831H
2018 2017 2016
20184 20174 20164
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000

P = A== A==
< A < B < A

BEBE 47,907 28,632 20,862
BERE 10,215 10,149 9,279
REE 37,692 18,483 11,583
EARRFE

- Ea gkl 18,483 11,583

16,235
7,547
8,688

8,688
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